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Location of Jiahua Stores
and Shopping Malls
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Shajing Shopping Ma
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Bantian Shopping Mall
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the emerging of the problem in domestic real estate
industry has affected traditional department stores which faced
significant pressure, with the continuous closure of stores by retail
giants in most city area. The retail business has been recovering. The
impact upon the operation in the retail industry posed by the surge
of e-business gradually surfaced, not to mention the effect brought
by high rents, high wage and other rising costs. Due to unfavourable
business environment, the Group has performed fair operating results.

Zhuang Lu Kun #EpE#
Chairman ZF K
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EEREE (B

Retail industry was generally operating under difficulties. Despite the
negative factors, the Group has made changes to its operation and
recorded a fair operating result. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB354.0 million,
representing an YOY increase of approximately 5.6%. Gross profit of
sales of goods was approximately RMB29.0 million, representing an
YOY increase of approximately 96.6%, and loss attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately RMB152.6 million, representing
an YOY increase of approximately 46.9%, mainly attributable to the
provision of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets of existing loss-making retail
stores, and impairment loss on loan receivables. Revenue decrease
was principally attributable to the general decline in consumption spirit
in the society during the pandemic. Sales of goods, commissions from
concessionaire sales and interest income from financing services were
decreased, while rental income from investment properties, rental
income from subleasing of shop premises, rental income from sub-
leasing of shopping malls were increased.

The group reformed its operations, reorganized the internal structure of
its flagship stores, implemented an operational responsibility system,
and streamlined business processes. In terms of cost reduction, the
headquarters staff structure was adjusted to reduce the pressure on
the group’s funds.

PROSPECTS

It is anticipated that the slowdown in economic growth rate of China
will exist as the high operating cost will extort the profit margin
which led to more business merger in the retail industry in 2024. The
traditional retail store will be highly conglomerated with online store
by sharing customer data, product information and sales tactics such
that to provide a more enjoyable and convenient shopping experience.
Apart from this, multi-industries development will be a main stream in
retail sector. The China retail market will be highly consolidated into
various large operators to make use of its corporate marketing power
and ability, and to increase the market competitive strength.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges ahead,

and the retail industry will compete and develop in a better market
environment.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EEREE (B

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group, and would
like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, business partners, and
valuable customers for their utmost support to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
27 March 2024
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (3t BE #), aged 63, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the
overall management, strategic planning and major decision making
of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong. Mr.
Zhuang has over 29 years of experience in the retail industry. He had
served as a honorary deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber
of Commerce (7% I T 42 75 &), a committee member of Guangdong
Province Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (I 1 & R & Z B &), a member of the China General
Chamber of Commerce (H B 7 2 Bt & & ), a deputy chairman of
Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s Chamber of Commerce (RIIT R &
¥ REE), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Franchise Association (%
N EE/ETEBE), and a honorary chairman of Shenzhen Baoan
General Chamber of Commerce (% JIl & % & 4 7 € ). Mr. Zhuang
graduated from Guangdong Administrative and Management College
(& ® 17 B 2 B ) majoring in modern management in July 1999, and
obtained the Master of Business Administration of senior management
from the Sun Yat-sen University ( # L KX £ ). He also received the
award of “Paragon of Work” of Guangdong province (& & & 4 &) 18
E3FE5%) in May 2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care Private
Ownership Entrepreneur (ZBIE 8 TEFREEPER) in September
2006. He was elected as the Top Ten Person of the Year in Commerce
of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten Creditable Entrepreneur in
the Integrated Retail Industry in China in the year 2007 and 2009
respectively, and the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Volunteers
Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has served the Group for over 29
years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (#5158), aged 62, is an executive Director and
the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for the financial
accounting of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an undergraduate
diploma in financial accounting from Guangdong Radio and Television
University (EREEEARAE) in 1990 and pursued advanced studies
in management in Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Zhuang joined the
Group in August 1995 and has over 29 years of experience in the
retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was accredited senior membership of the
International Profession Certification Association (Bl B 32 35 # &) and
membership of the China Association for Employment Promotion ( &
FRERE ) in 2008 and has obtained a master degree in business
administration from the University of Wales in England in 2014. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 26 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSEEEASRRE (B)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (§/M#), aged 41, Mr. Zhuang obtained from
the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts degree in
business administration in 2005 and a master of science degree in
finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is the deputy
chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (Association
of the Industrialists and Businessman) (&3 T 47 & ( T8 )) and
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shenzhen (B 15 731l Z 8 &). Mr. Zhuang is the son
of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan. He joined the Group
as full time member in 2006 and is responsible for the overall operation
management of the Group. Mr. Zhuang has served the Group for over
18 years.

Madam Yan Xiao Min (B/)NK), aged 52, has over 30 years of experience
in the Chinese real estate industry. Madam Yan graduated from
Tangshan Normal University in Hebei Province, China. Madam Yan
has worked as a reporter at the broadcasting department of Tangshan
Iron and Steel Company of Hebei Province Hegang Group. She also
served as the general manager of Jiahan Industrial (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. and the project general manager of Shenzhen Xinyi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. Since October 2011, Madam Yan has been the
general manager of Shenzhen Jiahua Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. until now. Madam Yan has extensive experience in real estate
development and property management. She has unique concepts
in the planning, design, construction, decoration and renovation of
urban complexes, especially large shopping malls. She has experience
in reducing construction and decoration costs, but complying with
the trend of the operational standards of shopping malls. The Board
believes that Madam Yan can provide valuable advice on the utilization
of the operating area of the Group’s existing stores, as well as the
location and planning of the Group’s future new stores. Madam Yan
has served the Group for one year.

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (2 8 #¥), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged 66,
is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow member
of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Chin was the independent non-executive director of
Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited (SE: 8350) (lately known as
Well Link Securities Holdings Limited) and resigned on 14 December
2023. Mr. Chin has served the Group for over 16 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSEEEASERE (8)

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (& 2 %), aged 71, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant and
a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer of the
Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant to the
principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun has over
34 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting, auditing
and corporate financial management. He is a director of Gemdale
Corporation (£ b5 ) (600383.SH), a listed PRC Shanghai property
developer. Mr. Sun has served the Group for over 11 years.

Mr. Ai Ji (3 ), aged 70, graduated from Hunan Radio and Television
University (;# 5 & #% & 2 X 2) with a bachelor’s degree in law and
obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in 1988. Mr. Ai is a
practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for Hunan Chuhua Law Firm
(H B EERRNE AT and Guangdong ShenTianCheng Law Firm (5
BUFRKAKRRIZEFSAT), and is a senior partner of the Yingke Law Firm
(BRHZENEFEFT). He is a member of the standing committee of the
fifth session of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (Shenzhen) (F B A REUA & :# /xR
B9), a member of various committees (including member of the sixth
and seventh sessions of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy
chairman of legal system committee, and deputy chairman of the fourth
and fifth sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic
National Construction Association (7 B & F #Z B ). Mr. Ai practised
as a legal counsel and has accumulated over 42 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 16 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSEEEASERE (8)

Madam Ying Chi Kwan (%2 %), aged 49, has more than 23 years’
experience in corporate financial reporting and financing. She has
assisted several clients in handling listing related projects and provided
financial consulting services to a number of listed companies, involving
in the construction, real estate, and shipping industries. Madam
Ying graduated from the University of British Columbia in Vancouver,
Canada with a Bachelor of Commerce. She is currently a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Madam Ying
worked for Emnst & Young, and since 2005, she started her career in
corporate finance and has worked for different financial institutions
licensed by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. She
has worked in Chinese-funded, Taiwan-funded and Hong Kong-
funded financial institutions, including but not limited to Haitong
International Capital Co., Limited and KGI Securities Asia Co., Limited.
From 2022 to 2023, Madam Ying served as an executive director of
Southwest Securities (Hong Kong) Capital Limited. The Board believes
that Madam Ying provides valuable advice on the Group’s corporate
financial reporting and financing, internal control and Environmental,
Social and Governance matters. Madam Ying has served the Group for
one year.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Li Chong ( Ff ¥ £ ), aged 48, is the manager for the
engineering department of the Group, responsible for the establishment
of engineering and facilities management system, purchase of bulk
equipment, and project based renovation program etc. Mr. Chen
obtained the certificate of Housing Architecture from the Fujian
Agriculture And Forestry University and is a PRC registered civil
engineer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003. He has extensive
engineering facilities management experience. Mr. Chen has served
the Group for over 21 years.

Mr. Li Dong (Z#8), aged 49, is the manager responsible for security
and safety management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a certificate of
Business Administration from the Open University of China in 2011.
Mr. Li has served as store manager, deputy manager of the human
resources department, the chief operation officer, the general manager
of the Guangxi subsidiary and the deputy manager of the procurement
department. Mr. Li has over 22 years of experience in the retail
industry. Mr. Li has served the Group for over 20 years.

Mr. Wen Meng Chen (J& &= E ), aged 46. Mr. Wen is the deputy
manager of supermarket procurement department, responsible for the
commodity sourcing and resource allocation. Mr. Wen obtained the
bachelor of business administration degree of Xi’an Jiaotong University.
Mr. Wen joined the Group in 1997 and had been working as store-in-
charge of Shajing store (former one), Longhua store, Shiyan store, and
Gongming store etc. He possessed rich experience in retail commercial
complex management. Mr. Wen has served the Group for over 25
years.

MEBELL 495 RABB_t+=F2
ENCEMBEERLBELS  SHHET
EPRIEHEMLEMIER RAZH EMARIRE
WA AR - PIPRENITERERESE
WENME - MREEERNNEXLTER
JIEEH R B ABEMER L - B AXEFE
MEtmpee s - ML ERL KGN
ERER YE_TTEhFEMRECES
MEXVEBRNTANEERESHES R
B - RERTE 88  BETBEET
5 BRETRNEEBERELNEGR AR R
SEBHTMNAERAE YR _-_FT-_—F=5
—E_FHRAR(ER)REARARIE
BUTES - EFSHEMLTHEEDRE
MEERNERE - RREZERIRE  HER
ERRRMHEESR - BMALEREBRBE T
BF

EREERE

BREREE - 4855 0 TIREETFLRE - A
ETREEFEERBRNEY - AEBHNR
BRI - MR ABKESETIZAR T2
ET RALEMBRERMABEERHE
EEEFE RTEEMLIZTRMN - REE
R-TE=FMATEE  EHEENTRE
RBEELR - RELEREERE T HEB
—

TRELE 495 THRE AEE
EHHERIE - FEER_T——FEX
RARBERERASBIHERER - ThAE
BEEBNEER - ANBREIRE  £ER
& EAFRFAKLEMRICEIRE - X
ERTETERBBE_T _F&B - 5L
AEREERE TEBB - +F -

i
i

BEEKE - 4658 BHHEBEH OB
BEEMEMIRBEERES TIE - RE
AEXRARRXBRABIFERER - B%E
ER—ANEFNAREE - EEDHD/E
(RIJE) - BEEDE - AENE - RABDHE
FREA HELENTERBRABEER
B oREEENEERE THAE_THF -

EEARERERAR —ZT_=FFR 13



N
T —
I
e
I
e ———
—————
I
———
———
I

e ——
I

—

Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENSEEEASRE (B)

Mr. Liu Ya Feng (% 51 I# ), aged 40, is the chief information officer,
responsible for the overall information technology of the Group and
the operation of its subsidiary — Shenzhen BJH Network Technology
Limited. Mr. Liu obtained the certificate of Information Management
System from the Guilin University of Electronic Technology in 2005.
Mr. Liu performed event management, corporate IT restructuring, work
flow enhancement, and commercial digital operation. He was the IT
manager of Shenzhen Guotaian Education Technology Co., Ltd and
Xinchuangji Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the Group
on October 2018. Mr. Liu has served the Group for over 5 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (1@ % #| ), FCCA, CPA, ACG, HKACG, aged
50, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group. Mr.
Ho obtained a bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University in 1995 and
a master degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an
associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(“HKCGI") — formerly known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and an associate member of the Chartered
Governance Institute (“CGI”). He was awarded the Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional dual qualification of the
CGl and HKICS. Mr. Ho has experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate finance. Mr. Ho has served the Group for over 16 years.
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2023, China’s retail industry has undergone significant
changes. Hypermarkets continue to be in a difficult situation,
using discounts to develop on discount stores and warehouse
membership stores. The downgrade of consumption has
led traditional e-commerce companies to launch low-price
strategies. However, in the field of membership stores,
traditional retailers such as Sam’s Club and Costco Warehouse
are bucking the trend and accelerating store openings.
Consumers in the same business circle will purchase identical
products intensively through similar channels, forming a
relatively fixed consumption pattern. In addition, the snack
industry is growing rapidly across the country, and it is
expected that the number of snack discount stores will reach
30,000 by 2025. Merchants in the snack industry began to cut
prices in order to survive. Competition, integration, survival and
development are taking place throughout the retail industry.

In 2023, the development speed of membership stores slowed
down significantly. First, it is the change in consumers’ attitude
towards membership stores. China’s family structure and the
consumption habits of young people are changing, which is
driving the membership store format to gradually become more
sophisticated. Consumers are more inclined to rational and
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practical consumption methods, which makes the “less variety
and large packaging” strategy adopted by member stores in the
past gradually becoming focus point for consumers. Meanwhile,
paid membership stores require 200,000 to 300,000 members
to support a store. In China, it is estimated that there are only
50 cities that can support member supermarkets, and the total
demand may only be 60 to 80. Therefore, market limitations
are a major challenge facing member stores. Then, from the
perspective of operation and management, local membership
stores also have problems. The operating model of membership
stores is significantly different from that of traditional
hypermarkets. The core lies in inventory turnover, supply chain
management, product selection and target group positioning.
This unique way of operating puts new requirements on the
supply chain, and it also takes time to adapt. Furthermore, the
core of membership is to build consumer loyalty and enhance
member experience through a rich variety of products and
private brands. The key lies not only in the speed of opening
stores and the number of stores, but more importantly, the
strength of supply chain capabilities. Third, the limitations of
location and the human resources are also problems faced by
member stores. In first-tier cities, suitable property resources
are scarce, which limits the speed of new store openings. At the
same time, new store openings require experienced employees
and time spent on training new employees. Therefore, member
stores face challenges in market positioning, operating model
exploration and resource allocation.

In the second half of this year, mergers and acquisitions in the
snack industry have been frequent. Wanchen Group continued
its acquisition strategy and announced the acquisition of the
management team of LAOPODAREN. This is another move
after the integration of the four major brands: Lu Xiaochan,
Laiyoupin, Haoxianglai, and Acidi Aidi. At the same time,
Snacks is very busy investing in Snacker Store, and Love
Snacks announced its controlling stake in the local Chengdu
brand “Konglong and Taidi”. In addition, Snacks Busy also
invested in Henan Wangfoufou and Shaanxi Xixi, while Yummy
Snacks integrated Yutaitai. These mergers and acquisitions
show that leading companies in the snack industry are rapidly
expanding in the market through capital operations to occupy
an important position in the market.

In 2023, retail giants such as Hema, Yonghui Supermarket
and Hyper-mart adopted a “discount offering” strategy, which
represents the retail industry’s in-depth exploration of low prices
and discounts. Under the influence of economic pressure and
market diversity, consumers prefer high-quality and low-priced
products when shopping. By launching low-price discounted
products, supermarkets can attract price-sensitive consumers
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and at the same time enhance their market competitiveness.
Hema announced to expand the variety of discounted products
and cut prices by an average of 20%; Hyper-mart reopened
its stores and announced a low-price strategy and price cut
by 15%. Secondly, optimizing inventory management and
reducing waste is another reason why supermarkets adopt
low-price discount strategies. Offline supermarkets are facing
the challenge of product expiry date and freshness. They often
need to remove products that are close to the expiry date
but are still consumable. This not only leads to the waste of
products, but also affects inventory turnover efficiency. Through
the discount store model, supermarkets can handle these
goods more efficiently, thereby reducing losses and increasing
inventory turnover. For example, Yonghui Supermarket
optimizes its stores across the country and launches “genuine
discount stores”, mostly for discounted or expiring products.

In the first half of 2023, the pattern of the community group
buying market has undergone significant changes. The “old
three groups” that once occupied an important position in the
market have shown a trend of weakening. Xingsheng Youxuan
went through a period of struggle and gradually withdrew from
many provinces, shrinking its business scope to Hunan, Hubei
and Jiangxi provinces. Under the new model, the group leader
is no longer just a seller, but has transformed into a “franchise”.
This approach strengthens the connection with the platform
through the store format. At the same time, the profit model
has also changed from relying solely on sales commissions to
profits based on the difference between the purchase and sale
of goods. The group store model also has unique advantages.
[t can concentrate a large number of orders, stabilize sales,
and is conducive to brand promotion; at the same time, by
concentrating orders, group stores can effectively manage
inventory and reduce backlog and waste. In the second half of
this year, the popularity of the community group buying market
will heat up again. Both Alibaba and JD.com hope to enter or
reposition themselves in the community group buying market
through low-price strategies. They take advantage of low prices
to find new development opportunities. However, achieving
this goal is not easy, especially when existing community group
buying market leaders such as Meituan and Pinduoduo still face
profitability problems.

In 20283, Costco has significantly accelerated its expansion in
the Chinese market, opening a total of 4 new stores. At the
same time, Sam’s Club also opened four new stores this year.
The acceleration of foreign-owned warehouse membership
stores in China is no accident. First, through the experience
of Sam’s and local membership stores, the entire industry is
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on the rise and development stage. Chinese consumers are
increasingly accepting the membership model and have a
certain degree of loyalty to high-quality goods. Membership
discount stores specialize in selling high-end goods. core,
more attractive to consumers. Second, Wal-Mart and Costco’s
mature supply chains and strong purchasing capabilities,
coupled with their global resource systems, provide strong
support for the development of member stores. As the
number of stores in China increases, Costco and Sam’s can
further optimize their supply chains, reduce operating costs
and improve efficiency. Third, the acceleration of warehouse
membership stores is actually a trend issue in the development
of the retail market. Currently, hypermarkets have entered a low
ebb and their performance is not ideal. Originally, hypermarkets
mainly relied on the influence of business districts to survive.
However, in the Internet era, business districts are more with
communitization, the business format has been categorised.
Taking Sam’s as an example, its current layout strategy is
somewhat related to its previous development of supermarket
business. Among the company’s total revenue growth year-
on-year, Sam’s Club contributed the most, with a year-on-
year growth of 4.5%. Walmart Supermarket has previously
deployed a large number of supermarket stores in China, and
the resources accumulated over the years can help the project
to be implemented quickly. In addition, there is still a lot of land
space in the core urban areas of most second-tier cities, which
can meet the positioning plans of Sam’s and Costco to build
large-area stores in relatively core areas of the city.

The e-commerce platform declared war on all fronts and
collectively started a price war. Jack Ma proposed returning to
Taobao. JD.com also plays the low-price strategy and launches
channels such as “Ten Billion Subsidies”. They all claim to have
the lowest prices on the entire Internet, and even offer ultra-
low discounts. Under such circumstances, although low prices
seem to be a good strategy, Pinduoduo was the first to fully
implement the magic weapon of low prices, but now various
home appliances All businesses have received tens of billions
of subsidies. In recent years, consumers from all walks of life
have begun to focus on reverse consumption. With an obvious
consumption mentality, coupled with the overall sluggish
consumption, they have higher requirements for cost-effective
products. Secondly, in the past few years, although Double
Eleven sales have been growing, the growth rate has been
slowing down year by year, and consumers have become tired.
With the increase of e-commerce platforms, various shopping
festivals are also emerging one after another, but the prices
are not low. There are too many various festivals. Therefore,
this year’s Double Eleven, although various e-commerce

R EFEREE  PRIEEE GRS
BEXeg8fEN  TEHSRER®
E—ERMRBE - gEHIITHEE N
EmimmmAaZzh  BRERIES
E o B RRIBAFAMTEA KA
FEE - HKEERE HRE - NI EHZIRE
REG  REEEMNERREHT AKX
S o BEEAEFRMPIESE LM
AL A] B — S B H e
%’%ﬁ@“&$ REBE - E
= RRHEEENNR  BEREE
m%% EERABE ﬁ%'ﬁmka
B NER - ZETIER - RRKE
SEXEXREBBNTENRERF B
EEOBARR  HEELEE -
RERMEDET - LUBAS - EET
m%%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
—EEE o ARIBEWRLLB RS

HEAEWE@Eﬁ [ b 3 &
45% o RRIEHBUAERAGD T
HEEANEBMAE  2FHEENE
TRAEBNHE R RIRIETE M © AN - KED
DRI ZOWENE D e
A - AJ LA 2 1L AN 5 Th & T Sk T AR
FiZ ORI - ERAEEMENE
fFRE -

BERNTER2HEHETE  SBITRTER
B SERETEEFOGAEASE - M
RERRBITHEE R - R A EH
Bh 155858 - MREWBACE2HERE
B EEEITHTRENRD £k
BERT RERAFT LER AT
K ZFEE2ER tﬁ@iﬁmmﬁ
%% BRESEREATHBEEIE
WALT IER - BERENEEE
FHERBEEXRBERNRMAEE -

—ERBEAEEOE - BN EEEHE
%%Bﬁ; iﬂfﬁ JZ[ZEDDKIEM ° ﬁ
Z o EREMAFE BT —HHE
A —BEAERE - BERREATE
BEWRE  HEBEHRBYES - B
EERTEaNEE  SEEYEHHE
HAE - FTERIEENREER - B
BRI MK - SEEHAKREL T ELK
RTERE HEEHRSERHEEE
ERMA « FTA - SFHE+—K

BEERARAR —T - =FFf 19



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwE DM (&)

20

companies have focused on their price level, how to highlight
their own advantages has become the biggest problem. At the
same time, the rise of emerging models such as short video
e-commerce and membership-based e-commerce has had a
huge impact on traditional e-commerce. These new models
not only provide more shopping options, but also improve
the shopping experience. For traditional e-commerce giants,
continuous innovation and change are needed to maintain
market leadership. In the long run, price war is only the starting
point for e-commerce competition. Although the low-price
strategy may stimulate consumers’ desire to buy, how to truly
attract consumers and prompt them to place orders in a price
war is a major test.

At the beginning of this year, after Douyin Supermarket was
officially launched, “hourly delivery” also appeared in the
Douyin Supermarket interface. Douyin Supermarket focuses
on next-day delivery, but it has both hourly and next-day
delivery capabilities. For Douyin, the layout of real-time retail
will undoubtedly become a new growth curve for Douyin
e-commerce to increase total merchandise transactions.
Analogous to the development trajectory of e-commerce, local
life and other businesses, Douyin can also develop instant retail
through the huge traffic in its hands. Coupled with the delivery
scenarios and interest recommendations on the platform, it can
be quickly promoted and attract more users to place orders.
The competition among online supermarkets mainly tests the
supply chain and logistics capabilities of the platform. On the
supply chain side, in the supermarket category, many brands
are already quite mature. Consumers mainly value price. In
the short term, platforms can increase market share through
subsidies, but in the long term, the level of price will test the
relationship between the platform and the brand. Bargaining
power and inventory turnover speed. From the perspective
of contract fulfillment capabilities, the key shortcoming of
Douyin’s hourly delivery is that compared to other platforms,
Douyin does not have its own distribution system. Currently,
it still chooses to cooperate with third-party logistics. Douyin
Supermarket products are shipped by SF Express. This cannot
form a complete closed loop from sales to distribution. In
addition, major platforms in the online supermarket field have
been deployed for many years, including the well-established
Alibaba Supermarket and JD Supermarket, and the lower-
priced Meituan Selection and Duoduo Maicai.
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According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the gross
domestic product in 2023 reached approximately RMB126.1
trillion, an increase of approximately 5.2% over the same period
last year.

During the year, the total retail sales of consumer goods
were approximately RMB47.1 trillion, a YOY increase of
approximately 7.2%. Among them, the retail sales of consumer
goods of enterprises above threshold were approximately
RMB17.8 trillion, a YOY increase of approximately 6.5%.
According to the location of the business unit, the retail
sales of consumer goods in urban areas was approximately
RMB40.7 trillion, a YOY increase of approximately 7.1%; the
retail sales of consumer goods in rural areas was approximately
RMB6.4 trillion, a YOY increase of approximately 8.0%.
In terms of consumption patterns, catering revenue was
approximately RMB5.3 trillion, an increase of approximately
20.4%; commodity retail was approximately RMB41.9 trillion,
an increase of approximately 5.8%. In retail sales of goods, the
retail sales of enterprises above threshold were approximately
RMB16.5 trillion, an increase of approximately 5.5%. During the
year, national online retail sales were approximately RMB15.4
trillion, a YOY increase of approximately 11.0%. Among them,
the online retail sales of physical goods were approximately
RMB13.0 trillion, an increase of approximately 8.4%, accounting
for approximately 27.6% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods. In the online retail sales of physical goods, food, clothing
and consumer goods increased by approximately 11.2%,
10.8% and 7.1% respectively. Classified by retail format, the
retail sales of convenience stores, specialty stores, brand name
stores and department stores in retail units above threshold
during the period increased by approximately 8.8%, 7.5%, 4.9%
and 4.5% YQY respectively, while supermarket decreased by
approximately 0.4%.
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In 2023, the service industry economy continued to recover
as the economy and community have been fully resumed. The
service industry continued to innovate in new formats. New
consumption models such as cloud exhibitions and Virtual
Reality fittings continue to emerge, and new commercial
formats such as live broadcast e-commerce and instant retail
are booming. These newly emerged areas are developing well.
The fast recovery of service consumption has stimulated the
people gathering service industry. Residents travel increased,
and the cultural and tourism market has recovered rapidly.
The service industry continued to be expanded. The business
activity such as information transmission, software and
information technology services, and finance, which are closely
related to the development of the real economy, has increased.
The business activity of the accommodation and catering
industry, which is closely related to residents’ consumption
and business travel, and the transportation, warehousing, and
postal industries increased. As the economy and society return
to normal, a series of policies to expand domestic demand and
promote consumption, market vitality has gradually recovered,
and urban and rural consumer markets have become active and
showing a growing trend. The proportion of online consumption
has steadily increased, the operation of physical stores has
continued to recover, the sales of green products have grown
rapidly, and residents’ service consumption has continued to
grow.
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(B)

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s total
revenue was approximately RMB354.0 million, an increase
of approximately 5.6% YQY; gross profit of sales of goods
was approximately RMB29.0 million, a YOY increase of
approximately 95.6%. Loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB152.6 million, a YOY
increase of approximately 46.9%. At the end of the year, there
were 9 retail stores and 3 shopping malls. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to general decline in consumption
spirit in the community brought from the closure of factory,
and the increase in unemployment rate. Besides, divestment
of foreign enterprise led to reduction of resident population.
During the year, it was mainly for upgrading stores to increase
revenue, the streamline of manpower and maintenance of key
employees, as to retain strength to meet future challenges.
Commodity sales decreased by approximately RMB14.6
million, commissions from concessionaire sales decreased
by approximately RMB8.6 million, rental income from sub-
leasing of shop premises increased by approximately RMB2.0
million, rental income from investment properties increased by
approximately RMBO0.4 million, rental income from sub-leasing
of shopping malls increased by approximately RMB42.2 million,
and interest income from financing services decreased by
approximately RMB2.7 million. The Group adopts a proactive
and stable business strategy, provides value-added services to
physical retail stores, and seeks and develops potential profit
opportunities for other investment projects, and begins to plan
the preparatory work for the expansion of its branch network
and shopping mall in the coming year.
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Looking back at the year 2023, the Group has made the
following major highlights in terms of operations.

During the year, the Group actively prepared for the
new shopping mall. Shajing Shopping Mall has been
officially open on 28 July 2023, and is located in center
of Shajing street, Bao’an District, Shenzhen. Shajing
has a long history and is known as the hometown of
oysters. The total area of the jurisdiction is 35.79 square
kilometers, and the general population is approximately
548,000. The area is positioned as “the center of the
west, an important town of intelligent manufacturing, and
a charming oyster township”. Shajing is an important
industrial town with a solid industrial foundation. There
are currently approximately 19,000 legal entities, and
leading industries such as new-generation information
technology, high-end equipment manufacturing, and
circuit boards. In 2022, the street has achieved a total
industrial output value of approximately RMB140 billion
of entities above designated size. Shajing is located in
the northwest of Bao’an District, adjacent to Xingiao
Street in the east, Fuhai Street in the south, seaside in
the west, and Songgang Street in the north. It is the core
area of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area, and the main radiation and service area of Airport
New City. The key node of the corridor is 30 minutes’
drive from Nansha Development Zone and Qianhai
National High-tech Zone. The Waterlands Resort is one
of the “Ten Scenic Spots of Baocan”, covering an area
of about 163 hectares. It is the only national 4A-level
comprehensive scenic spot in the west of Shenzhen.
The shopping mall is named “Baijiahua Jiayanghui”,
which integrates shopping and food attractive. The
project is located in Xingiao Street, Baoan, with a
sales floor area of about 54,000 square meters. It is
positioned as an “exquisite fashion life center”. The
shopping mall integrates the characteristics and culture
of Oyster Township. It covers a night market theme
street, a rooftop camping site, celebrity wet market,
and fun check-in points around the needs of different
consumers. With 140+ brands, and 20+ regional giants
stores have fully filled the gap in the lifestyle industry
in the business district. This project is the first show of
Baijiahua’s new flagship product “Jiayanghui”.
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The Group made adjustments to various supermarket
to improve production efficiency and customer comfort.
The fresh display, and the props in the main channel
were upgraded to assist the display; product packaging
and display were improved, and the product price
and gross profit structure were adjusted; the theme
display was added to highlight the seasonality and
the cost effectiveness of the product. Commodity mix
is enhanced by detailed description. For food display
upgrades, modifications are made according to the
third-party manufacturers, mainly to rectify the upgrade
of some props, focusing on seasonality, theme, and
connection; optimize the scene from the aesthetics
of product display (specifications, colors, categories);
Gross profit structure is matched, dynamic sales and
customer needs are considered; the display area of
imported categories is expanded, and the optimization
of imported categories. To upgrade the display for daily
products, the main rectifications include highlighting
seasonality, theme, and connection; centralized display
of key brands and categories; consideration of gross
profit structure and dynamic sales of goods; adjustment
of visual aesthetics, and increase of various teaching
materials. In terms of dynamic and static publicity,
promote publicity through teaching knowledge, short
videos, etc., form key work plans by continuing to
update teaching knowledge and the frequency of short
video publicity. In addition, supermarket guidelines have
been completed, and the visual identity of store wall
has been upgraded. In terms of operating area, it has
been adjusted from a hypermarket model to an elite life
supermarket. Upon adjustment, the gross sales floor
area has been reduced for other lease rental to other
operators, to increase revenue and reduce expenditure.

During the period, the Group increased value added
services in major shopping malls to improve customer
satisfaction. There were 20 projects have been
concluded for the upgrade service of the benchmark
store in Shiyan store, which has been promoted on the
Baijiahua applet; the enhanced service includes: dry
cleaning service, housekeeping service, repair of clocks
and watches, tailoring of shirts and trousers, pairing
of keys, car washing service, free document printing,

SEYREMBPIETHE
NIESEERERERAE
B MEBERIEAR =
mEBEEFREEMRY : B
BEMRSNE  BRER - E
FIAEREEITRAE  MAEEMR
p - EEikzRy - mmEERL
R SEEHERBF/ET
= ENERNEEYE KRR
m RS VEF R - ARAE 1 0 s
WBHBETRINAR - =B
BRENEX»EANAR =
Eﬁ%ﬂj gt - EREME - B
MRS R FEITS
%@m(%ﬁ% CBE - 98);
EFEREL - BREEE
B EBEERERERR  BEX
ZEDI%”;EB%@JE?E RS
O RBERL - NERAmBR
EF# - IE%EEEK:.&%
MM - EREM - B
BHEE REEFRYE
f%f‘]m%%@ﬂ & fh Eh AE 5H
B REXRNAE  SEHK
BHBOEN RBFEE
5 BBBFEICEANG - =
RAFRAEE  FEREH
BHBOER - BEIENSE
AR - R ERTIEREl - R
HitnfERAE - STk TEEmE
SIeE N - EISEEEE S D
AR - KEEBESTE BAE
i’%*ﬁﬁﬂ%&ﬁ*ﬁuui%ﬁﬁﬁ !
ERREELMEEHIER @ FR

/*'A—\‘t
Rpe °©

FA - KREENBFHSARZEE
R - AREEEZMEE °
m/\EIﬁgﬁﬁ&HEﬁ%/m A
0EHER - 2 FRAEEN
BARESE : AERBAR
B R - KBURE -
EIBER - HeE - il
RL - KERT - 2B XXM
- YR - EXRYE

BEERARAR —T - =FFf 25



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwE DM (&)

26

pet rescue center, old clothes recycling, electric car
restoring, flower booking, birthday cake reservation,
property market information, transportation ticket
booking, moving service, courier service, self-service
beverage machine, free gift wrapping, inhouse drainage
repairs, etc. In addition, service reward and punishment
system are formulated to improve service quality and
customer satisfaction.

During the period, the Group actively organized
marketing activities and implemented cross-industry
cooperation to provide a diversified shopping
atmosphere. Following the trend, the group began to
hold live broadcast sales. The virtual shopping scene
constructed by live broadcast brought the peddling
noise in market to the live broadcast room of instant
interaction. In the process of live streaming, the anchor
acts as a salesperson, shopping guide, and beauty
consultant. Promote vertical live broadcast, strengthen
the theme and interactivity, and increase attractiveness.
Increase special activities for members to maintain
a stable customer base. To enhance on-site small
handmade booths, customer satisfaction surveys, and
customer relationship management system. Official
account tweets, online mini-games and interactive topics
are launched to cater for different customers. In addition,
short videos are produced and broadcast on Douyin and
Channels to attract attention with vivid methods, and live
broadcast promotions combined with brand activities.
In terms of publicity materials, the Group has produced
various visual identity designs and management, visual
graphic design and extension in a novel and relaxed
way, adding joyful and colorful cartoons and texts,
and putting them into festive storefront promotional
pictures, official account profile pictures, live broadcast
related pictures and membership promotional design. In
addition, the Group also makes fashionable designs for
offline packaging materials, eco-friendly shopping bags,
and staff uniforms. Festivals, product categories, and
seasonal themes are also incorporated into the design
of store decorations, shelves, spending coupons, and
promotional merchandise stands.
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During the period, the group conducted a thorough
store inspection and maintenance of fire protection
system, electrical and supporting facilities, and operating
equipment (including elevators, air conditioning
systems, smoke exhaust pipes, etc.), and provided
safety knowledge training and drills to all employees to
enhance disaster prevention awareness. In addition,
regular monthly safety meetings are held to solve
hidden safety hazards in stores, and comprehensive
inspections of facilities are carried out to ensure normal
daily operation. Replacement of parts of cooling tower
and wind cabinet to ensure normal operation and saves
costs. Inspection of store decoration site is taken to
prevent illegal operations by workers during the process
in a timely manner. The Company strengthens internal
control by carrying out regular inventory count of all
fixed assets of stores, procurement center, shopping
malls and head office, to ensure matching balance
and reasonable retirement. This is used to update
system data and keep accurate records. In addition,
the job assignment mechanism is established to reduce
operation and man-made losses and protect the group’s
property. Periodic adjustments and rotation to staff
positions, detailed allocation plans are used to support
comprehensive performance appraisal, and improve
human resource incentive plans. In addition, safety
management is introduced to old store adjustment and
upgrade plan, and store design technique is employed
to make full use of resources and reduce construction
costs. Strengthening the protection mechanisms
and introducing effective alert system. The Company
will conduct anti-terrorism and flood prevention drills
and trainings to safeguard the safety of employees,
customers and group property.
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OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group has formulated a series of measure
to enhance sales turnover and to avoid unnecessary costs, so
as to achieve management target. Moreover, the Group aimed
to consolidate the existing stores by reform and innovation. By
this, improvement in sales mix, upgrade brand name, enhance
shopping experience to provide new shopping experience to
customers.

In addition, the Group has explored new commercial retail
mode, including shopping mall, trial experience, internet plus,
and catering business. With the online resource and shopping
outlets, and the synergy of online offline capacity, the Group is
able to provide a one-stop shopping experience to customers.

The year 2024 has both opportunity and challenge existed, the
Group has prepared to cope with all difficulties, to make use of
our core competency in the industry.

Looking ahead, China is still under the fast pace of development
stage. The macroeconomic condition has significant impact to
the industry. Rapid growth in information technology has direct
and critical effect to the industry. The directors are confident
towards the future. The mission of the Group is to become one
of the major operators in the retail industry.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

(=) KRERRE

FRBE-FRINEEEE  KEBK
BEARERLRE  AEERTL -
RITHE - FRIREDR - D FBRETK
FEXERR - AREBEHEAF
THEARWEN  ZERENEE
BB mAERE - THARMAE - IARLH
BERPLSRITH - BRATH -
BHEIRAHBERPONTELR -

SEOHTEHRRT —KNBHER
A BEEYTL - BRIEX B
B+ BRHBEEREATE  1ED
Xgere  HuSENRFED -
MmEEBEEDFAE ZNEEER
BANERES BARLEKTE
R BRIEES  MBEMT RKENZE
FEEINEEIER - ROF BB B EH
WBIR REeBETNRRE -

“TOMFERBRKBYEF - AEE
MEE M — &R - AES 1]
W AOMAAEEETERNE
HNEZ - BAM

REARK - A BIY B 7 R R B e B
B -BARBENZRESCHTESE
BE—EMFE - NEOFEMRBHS
MERBRNER  HEETETAR
AEE  BEEHAKENEBIRTT
WmED - AEENEBIRASTET
EXTHIBERALEZ— -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EFEENwE DM (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB354.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing an increase
of 5.6% as compared to approximately RMB335.3 million in the
corresponding period of 2022. The increase was principally attributable
from the increase in rental income from sub-leasing of shopping
malls of approximately RMB42.2 million, the increase in rental income
from sub-leasing of shop premises of approximately RMB2.0 million,
and the increase in rental income from investment properties of
approximately RMB0.4 million. However, the decrease in sales of
goods of approximately RMB14.6 million, the decrease in commissions
from concessionaire sales of approximately RMB8.6 million, and the
decrease in interest income from financing services of approximately
RMB2.7 million partly offset the overall increase in revenue.

Sales of goods decreased by 8.0% to RMB168.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB182.8 million in the
corresponding period of 2022, mainly due to (i) continued competition
from the ecommerce; (ii) the mandatory allocation of sales by the
local government during pandemic; (iii) the general habit of residents
to store food and supplies during pandemic; and (iv) general decline
in consumption spirit in the community brought from the closure of
factory and the increase in unemployment rate. Besides, divestment
of foreign enterprise led to reduction of resident population. Sales of
goods as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue was 47.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to 54.5% in the
corresponding period of 2022.

Commissions from concessionaire sales dropped by 37.2% to
RMB14.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB23.1
million in the corresponding period of 2022, mainly due to (i) continuous
competition from e-commerce; and (i) the impact of the general
decline in consumption due to the closure of factories and the increase
in unemployment rate. Commissions from concessionaire sales as a
percentage of the Group’s total revenue was 4.1% for the year ended
31 December 2023 as compared to 6.9% for the corresponding period
of 2022.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises up by 4.7% to
RMB44.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB42.5
million for the corresponding period in 2022, mainly due to reduction of
vacant rental units after the pandemic. Rental income from subleasing
of shop premises as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue was
12.6% for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to 12.7%
for the corresponding period of 2022.
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Rental income from investment properties slightly up by 4.4% to
RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB9.0
million for the corresponding period in 2022, mainly due to the increase
in letting of rentable area. Rental income from investment properties
as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue was 2.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 as compared to 2.7% for the corresponding
period of 2022.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls increased by
58.0% to RMB114.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 as
compared with RMB72.7 million for the corresponding period in 2022
mainly due to the reduction of vacant properties after the pandemic
and the new opening of Shajing shopping mall in July 2023. Rental
income from subleasing of shopping malls as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue was 32.5% for the year ended 31 December
2023 as compared to 21.7% for the corresponding period of 2022.

Interest income from financing services down by 51.9% to RMB2.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB5.2 million for
the corresponding period in 2022, mainly due to the default repayment
from a major customer. Interest income from financing services as a
percentage of the Group’s total revenue was 0.7% for the year ended
31 December 2023 as compared to 1.5% for the corresponding period
of 2022.

Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted to RMB139.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
17.1% as compared with RMB168.0 million in the corresponding
period of 2022, mainly due to decrease in sales of goods. As a
percentage of sales of goods, purchase of and changes in inventories
was 82.7% for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared with
91.9% in the same period of 2022.

Other operating income down by 32.0% to RMB35.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB51.8 million in the
corresponding period in 2022. The decrease in government grants
of approximately RMB2.8 million was due to tightening of local
government budget. The decrease in administration and management
fee income of approximately RMB1.0 million was corresponding to
the drop in commissions from concessionaire sales. The decrease in
rent concession from some of the retail stores and shopping malls of
approximately RMB10.8 million were due to the lessen of pandemic
condition.
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Staff costs increased by 4.2% to RMB72.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 from RMB69.3 million in the corresponding period
of 2022, primarily due to due to new recruitment of staffs for the
Shajing new shopping mall opened in July 2023.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased only by 1.4% to RMB59.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB58.4 million in
the corresponding period of 2022, primarily due to mainly due to the
additions of Shajing shopping mall opened in July 2023. However, due
to provision of impairment loss of right-of-use assets for loss-making
retail stores of approximately RMB12.9 million as at 31 December
2022, the depreciation expenses have been sharply decreased for the
current year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment slightly decreased by
7.8% to RMB55.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from
RMB60.1 million in the corresponding period in 2022. The addition
was mainly related to Shajing shopping mall opened in July 2023,
but provision of impairment loss of plant property and equipment for
loss-making retail stores of approximately RMB3.9 million as at 31
December 2022 has reduced the depreciation charge for the current
year.

Impairment loss on loan receivables of approximately RMB36.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 represented expected credit
loss on loan receivables from financing services business during the
year. Impairment loss on loan receivables was approximately RMB0.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. This was mainly
attributable to the default repayment from a major customer.

Other operating expenses decreased by approximately RMB1.1 million,
from RMB2.3 million in the corresponding period of 2022 to RMB1.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. This was mainly due to
tight cost control.

Finance costs arising from lease liabilities increased by approximately
RMB7.1 million, from approximately RMB33.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB40.3 million in
the corresponding period of 2023, primarily due to addition of
lease liabilities resulting from Shajing shopping mall opened in July
2023. Finance costs arising from bank borrowings increased by
approximately RMBO0.3 million, from approximately RMB6.2 million for
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the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB6.5 million
in the corresponding period of 2023 due to decrease in repayment of
bank borrowings compared to last year.

Income tax credit amounted to approximately RMB3.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, decreased from approximately
RMB6.5 million (restated) in the corresponding period of 2022,
mainly due to decrease of taxable profit of subsidiaries during the
year of approximately RMBO0.5 million and the decrease arising from
application of the new amendments to HKAS 12 on temporary
differences for transactions related to lease of approximately RMB3.2
million. The effective tax rate applicable to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were 25% for general subsidiaries (15%
for Guangxi subsidiary and subsidiary qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise). In addition, pursuant to the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by subsidiaries established in China. The applicable tax rate
is 10%.

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to Shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB152.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared with loss of approximately RMB103.9
million (restated) in corresponding period of 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB40.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB66.2 million), while the restricted bank deposits amounted to
approximately RMB2.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB2.0 million).
Total borrowings of the Group included bank loans of approximately
RMB151.5 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB157.2 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB138.9 million, as compared to approximately
RMB71.6 million as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2023,
the gearing ratio of the Group was negative as the Group’s equity was
in deficit position (31 December 2022: 3.86), which was calculated
on the basis of the net debt divided by total equity. Net debt was
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current bank
loans and lease liabilities) less total cash (including cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposit).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BRET MR DM (&)

REVENUE - TURNOVER

0.8%

2023 2022
—E-=HF B
1217 =3{0]0]0) RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETIT
() Sales of goods HEEM 168,206 182,773
() Commissions from concessionaire sales EEHEFMSAE 14,543 23,039
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises SHIEFHYMENES YA 44,418 42,459
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls DS EHESIWA 114,901 72,660
©® Rental income from investment properties BREMENES WA 9,360 9,070
@ Interest income from financing services KB 2 BARTE < FILEWA 2,538 5,271
353,966 335,272
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWmR I (&)

GROSS PROCEEDS Fri8Fua4 %

-

21.6%

2.1%

1.2%
38.9%

0
26.5% 41.39%

9.6%

0.5%

29.4%

2023 2022
—g-= —E-—f

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTET

() Sales of goods HEEM 168,206 182,773
() Concessionaire sales BEHE 93,500 129,997
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises pariclt ik E A ON 44,418 42,459
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls HEESYERES YA 114,901 72,660
® Rental income from investment properties REMEHESIA 9,360 9,070
® Interest income from financing services KA BARTS < FILEWA 2,538 5,271

432,023 442,230
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EFEENwE DM (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION

The activities of the Group expose to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

U

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority of the
Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are denominated in
RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group are mostly denominated
in RMB or HK$. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign currencies against RMB may have financial impact to
the Group.

Credit risk

For the operation and management of retail stores and other
related businesses, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk. Most of the sales transactions were settled in cash
basis or by credit card payment (or through online payment
platforms). Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from loan
receivables from financing businesses. In respect of loan
receivables, the Group’s policy is that all customers who wish
to obtain loans from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group holds collaterals directly or indirectly to cover
its risks associated with loan receivables.

The credit and investment policies have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on bank
balances, borrowings, loan receivables and lease liabilities.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a
policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent upon the cash
received from its customers. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwE DM (&)

The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging purposes
and the Group did not have any hedging instrument outstanding during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the year ended December 2023, the Group had 647 full time
employees in average in the mainland China and Hong Kong. The
Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals and provide
continuing education and training for employees to help upgrading
their skills and knowledge as well as developing team spirit on an on-
going basis. During the year, total staff costs were approximately
RMB72.2 million. Competitive remuneration packages are structured to
commensurate with reference to individual responsibilities, qualification,
experience and performance.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, capital expenditures of
the Group for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
amounted to approximately RMB28.4 million and RMB3.0 million
respectively (2022: approximately RMB9.6 million and RMB1.8 million
respectively).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of investment properties
amounted to approximately RMB230.8 million (2022: RMB242.7
million) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans granted in
relation to the Group’s retail business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EFEENwE DM (&)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately RMB8.9
million (2022: approximately RMB2.4 million).

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration, payment and amount of
dividends will be subject to the discretion of the Board in accordance
with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the articles of association of the Company and will be
dependent upon the Group’s current and recent financial performance,
cash flow position, working capital requirements and expenditure
plan, restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant laws,
rules and regulations, and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.

In determining any dividend amount for a particular year or interim
period, the Board will also take into account, inter alia, the consolidated
profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year or period,
dividend distributed during the year, and the retained profits available.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWmR I (&)

Gross Average of daily Average of daily
Commence floor area transactions transactions Estimated no. of
operation on Storey (sq.m.) (Supermarket) (Department store) visitors per day
BEER SRIHYRZEE BEYYRZEE
Retail stores HREeRE  2E (FAK) (i) (BE) S EBRHA
FY23 FY23 FY22 FY23 Fy22
—E-cE B —“E-_F ZBCZE “E-C
Songgang i 1/1/2001 B 23,134 1,122 1,259 9,750 8,507 15,764 14,162
Longhua EES 1/11/2001 8 24,549 866 877 11,312 9,169 17,658 14,567
Gongming ~H 1/9/2002 4 21,843 1,463 1,814 7,936 7,933 13,629 14,134
Shiyan ha 1/1/2007 1 5,852 2,629 2,676 8,953 6,972 16,793 13,991
Dashatian A 1/1/2009 8 8,500 1,893 1,885 - - 2,745 2,734
Bantian KA 112/2017 1 2,693 1,231 1,386 29,368 24,942 44,368 38,176
Guanlan B8R 21/12/2019 1 2,991 1,762 1,779 18,996 15,644 30,100 25,265
Shajing” D 28/7/2023 1 2,833 776 - 12,080 - 18,642 =
Gross proceeds
Gross proceeds per operation area Average value
Gross proceeds per day per day per transaction
BRREEE
FeRELE BHAEHEAR FriSRuaEH FRRF VA
(RMB million) (RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)
Retail stores (AE%EER) (AE%T 1) (AE®7) (AE¥7)
FY23 Fy22 FY23 FY22 FY23 Fy22 FY23 Fy22
—E-= ZB-ZE -T-_fF CZBC-ZE —E-_F ZB-=E _ZF-CF
Songgang T 39.2 46.3 107.5 1269 5.6 6.6 70.0 83.7
Longhua £ 28.5 2.6 78.2 183 3.7 3.6 486 56.3
Gongming N 481 60.7 131.7 166.3 6.7 85 785 844
Shiyan ha 80.5 1235 2206 3384 47.0 72.0 87.3 99.2
Dashatian ROH 36.9 37 101.0 1088 216 233 49.3 52.9
Bantian RH 20.6 28.0 56.4 76.8 209 285 48.7 61.1
Guanlan BR 374 410 102.5 1124 34.3 37.6 55.7 65.2
Shajing* D 165 = 453 = 1.1 = 63.5 =
Note: BT -

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records.

* This store was opened this year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory authorities
and has been devoted to improving the transparency of its corporate
governance and the quality of information disclosure. The Group also
attaches great importance on communication with its shareholders
and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness and accuracy of
its information disclosure to its shareholders and investors and to the
protection the interests of investors. The Board has strictly complied
with the principles of corporate governance and is dedicated to
improving the management quality of the Company and the standard
of corporate governance continually in order to protect and enhance
value for shareholders. To this end, the Company adopted the
principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules with the aim of enhancing the
quality of corporate governance of the Group. Such adoption was
reflected in the Company’s Articles of Association, internal rules and
regulations and the corporate governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended 31 December 2023 as contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code provision F.2.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun,
the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 9 June 2023 due to his other
business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRSE (@)

BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, of whom three are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board, one is Non-executive
Director, and four of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.
Profiles and particulars of the chairman of the Company and other
Directors are set out under the section headed “Biography of
Directors and Senior Management”. The term of service of each
executive Director, Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director is three years, two years and two years respectively.
Corresponding to the term of service, all executive Directors have
entered into service contracts, which are valid for a term of three years
(two years for Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors) and renewable subject to the applicable laws. The names of
Directors referred herein are members of the seventeenth session of
the Board. The principal responsibilities of the Board include:

- to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and financial
performance and determine proper policies to manage risks
exposures arising in the course of achieving the Group’s
strategic goals;

- to oversee and review the Company’s internal control system;

— to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information pursuant
to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the regulatory
authorities and information disclosure pursuant to legal
requirements;

— the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company. The
Board is responsible for setting and handling policies, financial
and formulating affairs affecting the overall strategy of the
Company, including financial statements, dividends policy,
material changes to accounting policies, annual operating
budget, material contracts, key finance arrangements, major
investments and risk management policies;

= the management has received clear guidelines and instructions
in respect of their authorities, especially under all circumstances
to report to the Board and to seek Board’s approval prior to
making any decision or entering into any commitment on behalf
of the Company; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (@)

BOARD (Continued)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties and
obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and protecting
the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that documents
and information relating to the businesses of the Group are provided
to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent Non-executive
Directors perform their duties in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Company has received confirmation
letters from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director in respect
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-third
of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting
and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire at the next annual
general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible to offer themselves
for re-election.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against losses
or liabilities sustained or incurred from execution of their duties. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as
deemed appropriate by the Board.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRSE (@)

BOARD (Continued)

All INEDs have their respective terms of appointment coming to
an end normally two years after their appointment to the Board or
their last re-election as Directors. The re-election of any INEDs who
has served on the Board for more than nine years is subject to (1) a
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders; and (2) further
information to be set out in the circular to Shareholders stating why the
Board or the nomination committee believes that the relevant INED is
still independent and should be re-elected.

Given the strong independent element on the board composition,
independent views and inputs are always available to the Board no
matter through formal or informal channels. The Chairman promotes
a culture of openness and constructive relations between INEDs
and other Directors to facilitate effective contribution of INEDs for
independent views and inputs. The Chairman also holds separate
meetings with INEDs without the presence of other Directors at least
annually. Independent professional advice is sought when necessary or
as required by Directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
composition and is satisfied with the independence of the Board.

In order to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the Board has developed the following mechanisms, including
but not limited to:

(i) at least one-third of Board members are Independent Non-
executive Directors;

(ii) every Independent Non-executive Director is appointed for a
specific term and subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years;

(iii) Independent Non-executive Directors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience;

(iv) no Independent Non-executive Director holds more than
six listed company directorships to make sure that each of
Independent Non-executive Directors has sufficient time to
make contributions to the Board;

(v) every Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company; and

(vi) the Board, each of its Committees or every Director is able to
seek professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses.

The implementation and effectiveness of relevant mechanisms have

been reviewed by the Board during the Period and will be reviewed
annually.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERIRE (&)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 2 July
2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing
the policy. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and
achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities of
Directors. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments should be
based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed such board diversity policy in the year.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training confirmation of each director received for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is summarized below:

Directors

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun e A4
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong MRS
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong SENESR A
Non-executive Director FHITES
Madam Yan Xiao Min SN
Independent Non-Executive Directors B IEHITES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung IR A
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BREERLE
Mr. Ai Ji N RkFEE
Madam Ying Chi Kwan MEELZ L
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Reading
Materials
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERIRE (&)

COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this
report is set out in the table below:

Committee

BEREES

Directors

ZEE
ETEREENERRTEITESEHA =@
EFFEHREEENZTEGHNT - HEAR
RHARLZEZEGHKENT

Nomination
Committee

REEES®

Audit Remuneration
Committee

FMEES

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) — HEBEMSEA (BF L) - - -

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong B A - Member 5% & -

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong HE/NHESE A - - -

Non-executive Director FHITES

Madam Yan Xiao Min SN - - -

Independent Non-executive  BIYFEHTES

Directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung IR ST Chairman =& Member X & Member X &

Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEERLEE Member fX&  Chairman =& Member i &

Mr. Ai Ji I RpEAE Member f% & Member fX&  Chairman £ /&

Madam Ying Chi Kwan TBEBE L+ Member X & Member X & Member X &
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREE®

The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April 2007
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The audit committee comprises the four Independent Non-executive
Directors who together have substantial experience in the fields of
accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and regulatory
affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company as well as
substantial exceptional items, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, which included a review on the audited annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of the
Company’s external independent auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the four Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director. The primary duties
of the remuneration committee are to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management. In addition, it has responsibility
for reviewing and making appropriate recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of all the Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The nomination committee comprises the four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The nomination committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on appointment
of Directors and management of Board succession. The responsibilities
of the nomination committee are to determine the criteria for identifying
candidates suitably qualified and reviewing nominations for the
appointment of Directors to the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors;
and (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is
good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from the
widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess regularly the
diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable, senior management
prepared for Board positions under the succession planning of the
Company and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

During the year, in response to the amendment to the CG Code
effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also adopted the
Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the factors for
assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board
of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the followings:
character and integrity; qualifications including professional
quallifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) REZEE(E)
Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy) isas ~E&(BIEZIRAKRLES)NHFELERNT
follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings
HERY, ERRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board committee committee committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings AGM

EEg FHZEE  FHEEE z REZEE KRRAFAS

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SEREsR A 5/5 N/A TE A N/A @R N/A iR 0/1
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong SomBEAE 5/5 N/A NiE 2/2 N/A i 11
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong SNVEEE 4/5 N/A T N/A iR N/A i 0/1
Non-executive Director *HTES
Madam Yan Xiao Min BhRZT

(appointed on (R=Z==%F

1 November 2023) +—F—BEZ) 1/5 N/A RE N/A @R N/A i N/A i

Independent Non-Executive B EHTES

Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIRERAE 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 11
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEELE 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 0/1
Mr. A Ji WREE 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 11
Madam Ying Chi Kwan MEELL

(appointed on (R=Z==%

27 December 2023) TZAZTtREZMR) 0/5 0/3 0/2 0/3 0/1

COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, isa ful AR RERRWE @ [HAEE - RALQE
time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken no less ZZBUEE - RER - W2 T AIR+H
than 15 hours of relevant professional training. /N AR R BB R R T -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied with
the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the Company
would publish the financial statements of the Company at the
appropriate time. The responsibilities of external independent auditor to
the shareholders are set out on pages 72 to 74.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS IN APPENDIX C3 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the Directors of
the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors, the Board is
pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully complied with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules during the year under
review.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid/payable
to BDO Limited, the external independent auditor of the Company, is
set out as follows:

Type of services provided by the external independent
auditor

ESRGEAHMBRRNET

EERNBRESREARAVBHEHREROE
T BEER  ARRPBREROEEFTA
HEEERGFER - BARQRBREE R
RFIBE AR R A ISR o INEIE S A% B AT &
R EEEHNE72E748 ©

BFEHARAMECIEHRITAE
EETREZXZNEETR

AR BB IR LT AR BB ERCIpT &L _E 81T
ABFETEFXZNEESTH - fERARQ
FAESETEFRINTATE - RRAES
EHREERR  EFTEMAER  28E
EREBFRE —EET LT ARRMERCIPT
FEMBETABSETESF I HIFRESTH] -

BEETE &
HE_Z_=F+-_A=+—HULEFE &
REIENR AN B EERE
TR BT AR AR 2B EHFI0T

SMNERIE M BB IR 2 RIS TE SR

Fee

[

RMB’000

ARET T

Annual audit services FEERE 917
Other audit and non-audit services H A MIEEAT AR 183
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to
manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the senior
management of the Group (“Senior Management”). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of such systems as least annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in
providing directions in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. At least on an annual basis, the Senior Management identifies
risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are
then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has its risk management and internal control
department to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the Group
during the year. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt
remediation actions are taken.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope
with its business transformation and changing external environment;
the scope and quality of management’s review on risk management
and internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the extent
and frequency of communication with the Board in relation to result
of risk and internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses
identified and their related implications; and status of compliance with
the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective during the year.

B B T | R BR ER 4R

AEBENRREEREREF MRNIEERFHE
Kﬁ%ml«hﬁﬂﬁﬂ’]ﬁf@ ERE - R RIEF A

EHRET  BBASEEESEKEERN
H[gu”

AEECHTERREBEBELR  BHAEE
Bl BRZESNSAEREBE(SRE
BEDHEK - EXRETERERAE B RE
B IR AR R 2 EE&ﬁf ¥ & B RER
EEE&W_LB@?I% E}J * Hﬁﬁ&m%ﬁ
&E %%%ﬁL%V§§a§9t¢*
m B R RGN AL - @I@%%ﬁiﬁ
?ﬂ?ﬁ BT - EERA RIS

AREBIEHIE RRARREERR - f2H]

BEl - AR EREARBRNER - SRE
BEELEBF-RBHNUERAEB B RE

RAMEZENRR @ XRIE—EFRELRF
fé&ﬁFﬁlJFﬁEﬁkE‘Jﬂ BTN M E
xJ—Ug %U}—f_ﬂ AA/\ ﬁq"uﬂl»iu&% )ﬁ::}_l/ AA%EA °

SESN - RN SR B A H R B TR K A BR R
MPAAGHEERRERZEERELEAS

BeEREE M ARMEERGARBITAS
B A ERE T B RE - AR NEME R RRGT R E
TR Z R HEENEZE - EANEE

ERAEMBAEZEZEGREETRER
PAREAR SRER AR 1T ED

%%%E%L%*§AE%$EIMHA“
BRABEERARESEARETFER

a%@?@%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁf%
WEOIIMERBORESD EEERSRERE
BERAMEERARO TFREREE - A5
BT TIFER - SRR R ARRERR T &
HEERBANFERERRE - 2RAIN
EREERRIBEAREETE - UEkH
ETFRAMABREN - EERRB/AFER
SENEBREERAMEZERGAR o

EEARERERAR —T_=FFR 49



I
I
I
I
4

—

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless
the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided in
the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires equal
disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND CONTROLS

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated the
relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies, policies and
contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial reporting systems
are formulated by relevant departments and are subject to review by
directors in charge. The Group has formulated relevant procedures to
assess, review and approve significant capital and recurrent expenses,
while operating results will be compared against the budgets and
reported to executive directors on a regular basis.

TRAINING ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on a
consistent basis.
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ACCOUNTING SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting management
system, so as to provide the management with indicators to evaluate
its financial and operating performance and financial information for
reporting and disclosure purposes. Any deviation from expectation will
be analysed and explained, and appropriate steps will be carried out
to address issues where necessary. The Group has set up appropriate
internal control procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of
accounting and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and regulations.

CONTINUING OPERATION

During the year, there are no uncertain events or conditions that may
materially affect the continuing operation of Group on a going concern.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed copies
of the 2023 interim report have been sent to all shareholders. The
Company places great emphasis on communication with shareholders
and investors of the Company and improving the Company’s
transparency of information disclosure. As such, designated officers
are assigned to handle relations with investors and analysts. The
Company made disclosures in a faithful, true, accurate, complete
and timely manner in strict accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, Articles of Association and Listing Rules. At the same
time, the Company places great importance in collecting and analyzing
various comments and recommendations of analysts and investors
on the Company’s operations, which would be compiled into reports
regularly and adopted selectively in its operations. The Company
has set up a website, allowing investors to access updates on the
Company’s particulars, statutory announcements, management and
recent operating affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports,
circulars and announcements since the date of Listing are and will
be included in the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The
Company persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Articles of
Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings may request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the Company.
Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, Harbour City, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Investor Relations Department)
Fax: 852-3620 3100

Email: office@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its Articles
of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association for
further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.szbjh.com) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 are operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses and provision of financing services in the
PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 75.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 30 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s distributable reserves was
nil.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s listed
shares.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director:
Madam Yan Xiao Min
(appointed on 1 November 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung
Mr. Sun Ju Vi
Mr. Ai Ji
Madam Ying Chi Kwan
(appointed on 27 December 2023)

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
Madam Yan Xiao Min and Madam Ying Chi Kwan shall retire from
office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting by rotation. Al retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Chin
Kam Cheung, Mr. Sun Ju Yi and Mr. Ai Ji shall retire and be re-elected
as they are independent non-executive Directors who has served for
more than 9 years according to code B.2.3 in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. The re-election of Directors will be individually voted by
Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange. The Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent. All of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are members of the Company’s audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee.

Madam Yan Xiao Min has been appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 November 2023. She has obtained the legal advice on
6 November 2023 referred to Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules and she
has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a director of a
listed issuer.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (@)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Madam Ying Chi Kwan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 27 December 2023. She has obtained the legal
advice on 27 December 2023 referred to Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules and she has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 10 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years (two years for Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated
by not less than three months’ (two months’ for Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors) written notice of
termination served by either the Director or the Company. Each of the
service contracts further provides that during the term of the service
contract and within two years upon the termination of service, the
Executive Director cannot engage in any business which is competing
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Company. The appointments are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Executive
Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(ii) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(iii) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the
Board, the share option scheme adopted by the Company, as
part of their remuneration package.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 59 to 62, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Company. There is no contract of significance between the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its controlling
shareholder during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such Director and chief
executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

EESE
FABE IR BERARAEB LR
EAEEBSERRITROAR -

EERBRETRAERAQARHEME
BorE R - HEROREREENE
mRAR

R-ZB-_=F+-A=+—0 B=kHS
TBRABRARAR S ETMBE LB (TER
BE M ERE G ([ 355 R EE G ) EXVED)
2B - HEROREST - A @QBREE
F R EIEBIEXVERE T R8N EBME AR
AR PT 2 ERSAR (BREARNEHES
MEBITRABREZRSRPEKAEBIE
MW EESARIERA ZESTAR) ¢ ()R
BB E RS EIIE352(&BEHARRATITE
BEERMAZERSAR  SOBRIBELTR
TS LB TASSETELSRZNIZE
SFAN(MZESFR ) BMERRA R REBRfTZ
RERTOARUNT

RABEREEC.OB T2 EER

Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held

FisRe, HERAHE
Percentage
Personal Family Total of Issued
Capacity Interest Interest Interest Shares
EE BT
3 B Az EQi EEAE ROBIHE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”) Beneficial Owner 467,985,000 67,500,000 535,485,000 51.61%
(Note 1)
FEpEs A (T4 ) BEREEA (P3E1)
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial Owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
R ERMAAN
Note: B eE -
©) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang’). Since Mrs. (1) 67,500,000 A& ST R A L ([HEXDIFE °

Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr. Zhuang is deemed to be
interested in the said Shares held by Mrs. Zhuang.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)
All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executive and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FERRALRR TR EAEBEBER
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING 7 - HEROREEIZNEZ AR
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, according to the register kept by the R-ZE-_=F+-A=+—H ' KBAQ A
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as was  1BI5 &5 N B & &0 5336517 2 & LM BT
known to any Director, the following persons (other than the interests 7/~ * RIBEESEFRMNE B EX[EEREET
of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ BA BRAR R R EIEEBEBRG - BRERK
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, ) MEEBNHERNAR | —EiREE T%
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any associated = 2 #EZE9M » FHI AT RARR & J& 5 K EEE
Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in the shares and ~ BXfa - HEABIE B 5 LS EHIEXVELE2
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to &35 ZRIEXABRA N T IHE 2 RS A R ¢
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO:
Personal/ Percentage
corporate Family of issued
Type of interest Capacity interest interest Total share capital
BA/ HERTRA
BEESR ARG RikER @t B
Mrs. Zhuang Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000 467,985,000 535,485,000 51.61%
[N G0N 3 ERERA (Note 1)
(F¥aE1)
Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
HNELT 50N 3 ERERA (Note 2)
(FifzE2)
Ms. Chen Li Jun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
BRBELT G0N 3 ERERA (Note 3)
(FF7E3)

Notes: MiaT -

1) 467,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr. (1) 467,985,000/% i 10 R St PEsh e A ([ 5T e £ 1) 35
Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed to B HRELREREAZERB - SURERES R
be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang. EIEG - FAMAREREAERF 2 LM FR

wAER -

@) Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun is the daughter of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang. ©) HNEZTREAEREANZT -

@) Ms. Chen Li Jun is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang. ©) BREE X TR AL RERNELE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)
Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2023, had
an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1.

Rental income received from BJH Group

I T B fE ZE % B AR 2 A (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person of
the Company.

Certain commercial properties are leased to BJH Group
pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between Shenzhen
Baijiahua Department Stores Limited (“BJH Department Stores”)
and BJH Group for commercial purposes. The amount of rental
income received by BJH Department Stores in respect of the
leasing of commercial properties was RMB2,417,660.78 for
the year ended 31 December 2023, and has not exceeded the
annual cap of RMB2,417,660.78. The relevant amount which
are expected to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will
not exceed RMB2,417,660.78 for the year ending 31 December
2024.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BHEBEBXS (&)

(Continued)

Y EEEHE R B R AT (Shenzhen Jiahua Real Estate
Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is owned as
to 18% by Mrs. Zhuang and 82% by BJH Group (a company
owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10% as to Mrs. Zhuang).
Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, she is an
associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mr. Zhuang is interested in the
equity capital of JH Real Estate so as to exercise or control
the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of JH Real Estate, JH Real Estate is an associate of
Mr. Zhuang and also a connected person of the Company. The
Group leased one shopping mall from JH Real Estate, details of
which are set out as follows:

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 25 August 2016 (“Bantian
Lease Agreement”) between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and
Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial Management Limited (“BJH
CM”) (as tenant), BJH CM leases the shopping mall situated at
Level 1-6 of Jiahua Ling Hui Plaza located in the South-west
side of junction of Ji Hua Road and Wu He West Street, Bantian
Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the
PRC with a gross floor area of approximately 34,743.62 square
metres for a term of 15 years commencing from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2031 for a monthly rental of RMB1,806,668.24
with a 5% increment on the monthly rent every 3 years. The
parties to the Bantian Lease Agreement agreed that if the
Company cannot meet with the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders), BJH CM has
the right to terminate the transactions under the Bantian Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate without
any payment or compensation. Pursuant to the Bantian Lease
Agreement, the total annual consideration paid by BJH CM was
RMB23,902,220.82, for the year ended 31 December 2023,
and has not exceeded the annual cap of RMB23,902,220.82.
The relevant amount which are expected to be payable by BJH
CM will not exceed RMB23,902,220.82 for the year ending 31
December 2024.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BHEBEBXS (&)

(Continued)

Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua Real Estate
pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between BJH
Department Stores and Jiahua Real Estate for commercial
purposes. The amount of rental income received by the BJH
Department Stores in respect of the leasing of commercial
properties was RMB804,869.16 for the year ended 31
December 2023, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB1,000,000.00. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB1,000,000.00 for the year ending 31 December 2024.

FINTTEZE Y 2 IR A R & £ 2 8)(Shenzhen Jiahua Property
Services Limited) (Formerly known as “FIIHEEMEERES
PR & £/2 8] (Shenzhen Jiahua Property Management Limited)”)
(“the Property Manager”), a company incorporated in the PRC,
and is held as to 95% and 5% by the JH Real Estate and BJH
Group respectively.

On 15 November 2021, the Property Manager entered into the
Car Park Fee Agreements in respect of the usage of car parking
space located in Jiahua Lingyu Plaza Phase Il and Jiahua
Linghui Plaza Phase Il for a term of 3 years commencing from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive)
with both BJH CM and BJH Department Stores (the “lessees”).
Payment of fee under the Car Park Fee Agreements by the
lessees will be subject to actual usage, as agreed among the
parties, the maximum monthly fee payable by the lessees to the
Property Manager will not exceed in aggregate RMB180,000.00
for each of the car park locations. The aggregate amount of
car park expense paid by the lessees was RMB1,214,135.22
and RMB1,582,706.22 for Jiahua Lingyu Plaza Phase Il and
Jiahua Linghui Plaza Phase Il respectively for the year ended
31 December 2023, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB2,160,000 and RMB2,160,000 for Jiahua Lingyu Plaza
Phase Il and Jiahua Linghui Plaza Phase Il respectively. The
relevant amount which are expected to be payable by the
lessees will not exceed RMB2,160,000 and RMB2,160,000 for
Jiahua Lingyu Plaza Phase Il and Jiahua Linghui Plaza Phase I
respectively for the year ending 31 December 2024.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and usual
course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on normal
commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms available from
independent third parties. The Directors (including the Independent
Non-executive Directors) confirm that these transactions have been
conducted in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions and are of the view that the terms and conditions of these
transactions are fair and reasonable and are in the best interests of our
Company and our shareholders as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, are
also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as far as
our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from its
auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules for the continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been complied with by the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 1.6% of the
total revenue for the year and the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases attributable to the
largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 9.4% of the
total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the
year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers and major customers noted above.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

COMPETING INTERESTS
None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board Listing
Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Company or has any other conflict of interest
with the Company during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the audit committee before
recommending to the Board for approval.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and listed
shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction of related
issuance expenses) amounted to approximately HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2023, approximately HK$231,412,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$33,588,000 was deposited with banks, the security
of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately HK$231,412,000
are set out as follows:

o as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new stores
in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new store
in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

RAXBIFRE
REARAAHEN L RBEERM - A4S
WA - ARFEEITRAMIE R R 25%H
RBALHA

S

FR - ARAEFHERBRRARKES
BOBEAT(ERRERETRADHER
BN R ARG A] BB B F R
BB - AWEEARRFEDTAEAT

e -

EREEE
AAREEZE T -_=F+_A=+—HItHF
ENEEZTBHRERNEERESZIER -
ERBAEZEZESERH -

BRESREXRBRER
HEARRBRYBEE  HH HLE BEE
Bt SRATIE(E R BR D 2 R A5 =2 &
BAEE  RERGBAERER

=

B RERAE
ARABN-_ZTELFHAEMAFEIT L
MO EEMATERIEFE - EHNREAN
H1TE AEEERR%265,000,000/8 7T °

NZE-_=F+-A=+—8 CHEMRE
BRIEH231,412,0008 7 © HAEBENAE
FIEAI33,588,0008 TLIF AL RTT + H&LZ
%A B HRE o

EEAMERS
FHyoT

FIE49231,412,000%8 7T 2 5 1E
y #729,000,0007% 7T A3 {E 1 & BUR I
EHTEEEL

O #)28,300,0007% 7T FA {E R R B 6 1Ly B8
TR RERRIEW

. #18,750,000/8 ST B ER B E I FE 28
PR -

EEARERERAR —T_=FFR 63



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (@)

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

(Continued)

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xinan Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new store
in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new store
in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$23,578,000 for opening of a new
shopping mall in Shajing, Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$3,690,000 for opening of a new
supermarket in Bantian Longgang, Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,800,000 for opening of a restaurant
and two beverage kiosks in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$3,600,000 for opening of a theme
restaurant and a Chinese restaurant in Baoan and Longgang

Shenzhen, the PRC respectively;

o as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

o as to approximately HK$12,919,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

° as to approximately HK$15,000,000 for the purchase of office
equipment;

o as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the MIS;
o as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

° as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments of
existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the purposes as

set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial Summary on pages 6
to 9, pages 15 to 38 and pages 191 to 192 respectively of this annual
report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the Main Board Listing
Rules will be published together with the annual report of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong).
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE COMPANY

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure that
the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time to time.
Besides those general laws and regulations such as the Company
Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
Group has also complied in all material respects with all the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

27 March 2024
Shenzhen, the PRC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 REN RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{2H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua Stores
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 189, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B SRE (&)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2(b) in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB152,578,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023, and as of 31
December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately RMB138,916,000 and RMB13,168,000 respectively,
while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB40,002,000. As stated in Note 2(b), these conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Refer to notes 3.4, 5(b) and 15 in the consolidated financial statements.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to be
approximately RMB246,000,000 as at 31 December 2023 with a
fair value loss of approximately RMB12,600,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. To support management’s determination,
the Group engaged an independent external valuer as management’s
expert to perform valuation on the investment properties.

We focused on this area because in determining the fair value of
investment properties, significant estimation and judgement were
applied by the management in selecting appropriate valuation
methodology and key input parameters, including capitalisation rate of
reversionary income and market monthly rental rate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our key audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment for
valuation of investment properties included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and reasonableness of the key input data and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

- checking, on sample basis, the accuracy of the input data used
to supportive evidence;

- involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment; and

- evaluating the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

Refer to notes 3.6, 5(b), 13, 14 and 16 in the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB112,204,000, RMB320,320,000 and
RMB6,306,000 respectively.

Management is required to perform impairment assessment on the
Group’s non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets where indications of
impairment are identified.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets were tested at
cash generating unit(s) (the “CGU(s)”) level. Management judgement
is required in the area of asset impairment particularly in assessing
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or value in use; and the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections. Based on the assessment
performed, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the management
concluded that impairment losses of approximately RMB11,404,000,
RMB26,567,000 and RMB1,839,000 were made in respect of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets, respectively. To support management’s assessment,
the Group engaged an independent external valuer as management’s
expert.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Continued)
We focused on this area due to the size of the non-financial assets and
in carrying out the impairment assessment, significant management
judgement was used to determine the underlying key assumptions.

Our key audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of non-financial assets included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of CGUs based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies applied in
respect of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

- challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions of the cash
flow projections including annual projected revenue during
budget period, long term growth rate and discount rate based
on our knowledge of the Group’s business and industry;

- reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budget and considering the reasonableness of this
evidence;

- involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment; and

- evaluating the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B SRE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BB EFT R M BRRARNE
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e A - WRBPIERNERE
o EERAFERSHENKBELBN
BEATHEN - #frse gy &
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BEEZBERETIRBERE LR
REMIEHRAT AR MNE - kHA
MEESR  MRFMAEEEBNRE
R BRI ERNE E R A H
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. B BEEEAERIEREDNTK
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT #EMMBTGESMBRRALENE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {E(%&)

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those R EEEEBNEED » B TZZEE
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated ~ $tAREi4Z A I EBRNBTHATE - TH
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key MBI R E1H - BAEXEKAI RS P
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless il iZHEEIE - BRIBAREB T AT AR
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, BEABSIE @ SKEBRERBNIBERLT © HE
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not  IEFEHIE R FIRESIEN BHEERNTRER
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of EREA M AR - BIFRIFIRE S EAER
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest ~ &SFRIE N BB EIE o

benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited BRI EERETHEEMERAR
Certified Public Accountants EoifE Sy o

Tsui Ka Che, Norman #®=XG

Practising Certificate Number PO5057 MEFERIE : PO5057

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024 &F —T-NF=A=-++H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meZHEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

2023 2022
—=E=-= —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
(restated)
(&)
Revenue WA 7(a) 353,966 335,272
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA (139,169) (168,004)
214,797 167,268
Other operating income EAthag A 7(0) 35,213 51,832
Decrease in fair value of investment REME N EHERD
properties 15 (12,600) (15,600)
Selling and distribution costs THE R HHRA (266,797) (231,177)
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (42,532) (40,127)
Other operating expenses Hage s (1,177) (2,266)
Impairment loss on loan receivables W E SR EREE (36,377) (881)
Finance costs BUE RN 8 (46,859) (39,438)
Loss before income tax BrPTISHERTEE 9 (156,332) (110,389)
Income tax credit Frigtife 10 3,754 6,468
Loss and total comprehensive income FRARANTES AEL
for the year and attributable to EBEREEKNSELEE
owners of the Company (152,578) (103,921)
Loss per share for loss attributable to  FRZAATHEE AEBLE
the owners of the Company during BeEBRERE :
the year:
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EXREE
(AR%E5) 12 (14.71) (10.02)
EEFEERAERAR —T-=—FF® 75



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R

As at 31 December 2023
RZE-=F+-A=+—H

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
R+=A=+—H 2022
2023 2022 M-T—-—
—E_= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
(restated) (restated)
(&51) (&%)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #12% - B &% 13 112,204 150,870 205,470
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 320,320 296,092 366,418
Investment properties "EME 15 246,000 258,600 274,200
Intangible assets B AE 16 6,306 6,463 5,902
Deposits paid Bftize 17 19,376 15,920 16,525
Interests in an associate R—EBE AR 2 s 18 - = =
Deferred tax assets FETIBE = 28 87,223 79,453 92,294
791,429 807,398 960,809
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and consumables 17 & & 55 19 6,436 12,460 24,431
Trade and loan receivables EWE SRR R ER 20 30,514 53,267 52,631
Deposits paid, prepayments B f1#%& « FERFIER
and other receivables Hofh pE Y ERIE 17 26,975 34,517 51,273
Tax recoverable A Y B 718 19 66 388
Restricted bank deposit MR HlI8RI 717 5K 21 2,000 2,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEEY 22 40,002 66,171 26,113
105,946 168,481 156,836
Current liabilities REERE
Trade payables T E SRR 23 46,570 54,029 66,808
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 13,051 19,794 20,058
Deposits received, other BliES - HMEMNFKIE
payables and accruals MIEETE R 25 118,541 90,896 101,864
Amount due to a director BN —RESEHE 26 59 59 59
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 51,859 60,360 56,522
Borrowings BE 27 5,712 5,712 3,280
Provision for taxation TR IE B 9,070 9,214 10,266
244,862 240,064 258,857
Net current liabilities RBEERE (138,916) (71,583) (102,021)
Total assets less current BEERRBAR
liabilities 652,513 735,815 858,788
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
FEMBEMRRR (8)

As at 31 December 2023
RZB-=F+-A=+—H

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
R+=HA=+—H 2022
2023 2022
—EgE== T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
{iEz AR¥TRT ARETT ARETT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E31))
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities MERE 14 429,161 357,288 416,954
Borrowings BE 27 145,752 151,464 90,133
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIABE 28 90,768 87,653 108,370
665,681 596,405 615,457
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (13,168) 139,410 243,331
EQUITY e
Share capital &N 29 10,125 10,125 10,125
Reserves 1] 30 (23,293) 129,285 233,206
(Capital deficiency)/total (EXEH), EEEE
equity (13,168) 139,410 243,331
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
SEpE 1 e
Director Director
EE 0
FEEREERBRAT —T=FFRK 77



BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

At31 December2021 RM=ZT=—%

Share
capital

B
RMB'000
ARBTT

Share
premium

BARE
RMB'000
ARETR

Statutory
reserve

HE R
RMB'000
ANREFT

Statutory
welfare
reserve

EE
BERES
RMB'000

ARETT

Merger
reserve

afHE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Property
revaluation
reserve
LES
EftfRfe
RMB'000
ARBTT

Translation
reserve

BRERE
RMB’000
ARETTT

Accumulated
losses

RitER
RMB'000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Total

At
RMB'000
ARBTT

+-A=1-A 10,125 252,478 68,585 2,086 12373 431 (969) (106,003) 239,306
Effect of adoptionof ~ HEEBE:EH
amendments to HKAS 125583140
12 (Note 4(a) Z&(Mitit4(a) - - - - - - - 4,005 4,025
At 1 January 2022 kSt 3
(restated) —B—A(&3) 10,125 250,478 68,585 2,086 12373 431 (969) (101,978) 243,331
Loss for the year FREB(EF)
(restated) - - - - - - - (103,921) (103,921)
Total comprehensive  FAREKEEE
income for the year (E31)
(restated) - - - - - - - (103,921) (103,921)
Transfer to statutory ~ EBEATEREE
reserve - - 386 - - - - (386) -
At31 December 2022 RZTZZF
and 1 January 2023 +-A=1+—A
(restated) k=-ZT-=f
—A—B(&35) 10,125 252,478 68,971 2,286 12,373 431 (969) (206,285) 139,410
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (152,578) (152,578)
Total comprehensive  FAREREEE
income for the year - - - - - - - (152,578) (152,578)
Transfer tostatutory BB AT HE
reserve - - 32 - - - - (32 -
At 31 December 2023 W=B==%
+=A=+-A 10,125 252,478 69,003 2,286 12,373 431 (969) (358,895) (13,168)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

2023 2022
—_=E_= ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T T ARETIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRESRE
Loss before income tax BrETSRLATE 1B (156,332) (110,389
Adjustments for: AT RIBEL A% :
Interest income F BN 7(b) (662) (164)
Finance costs BhE KA 8 46,859 39,438
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19iE@H 1B H 14 - (10,840)
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEMEETE
equipment 9 55,408 60,127
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9 59,191 58,361
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE K&
equipment REsE 9 86 158
Decrease in fair value of investment WEYENTERLD
properties 15 12,600 15,600
Amortisation of intangible assets B & EE Y 9 1,282 1,205
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BEMEREZ
equipment BIEEE 9 11,404 3,891
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEE REEIE 9 26,567 12,915
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREE REER 9 1,839 -
Impairment loss on loan receivables EWEFORERE 36,377 881
Obsolete inventories written-off PRETF EHsH 9 97 31
Written-off of property, plant and W - R MR R
equipment 9 - 1
Operating profit before working capital LEE BB E R
changes 94,716 71,215
Decrease in inventories and consumables 17 & & SR 5,927 11,940
Increase in trade and loan receivables FEUE 5 BRI R EFRIE N (13,624) (1,517)
Decrease in deposits paid, prepayments 2414 ~ FE FIE K&
and other receivables H At e W skIB R 7,542 16,756
Decrease in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFUR (7,459) (12,779
Decrease in contract liabilities AHEERD (6,743) (264)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received, B HIRE - EfbFENFIE
other payables and accruals RETBAEM, CRd) 27,645 (10,968)
Cash generated from operations BEEESRE 108,004 74,383
Interest received 2 HHLE 662 164
Income tax paid [BECEIET (998) (2,138)
Net cash generated from operating AR TR & FEE
activities 107,668 72,409
EEFEERAERAR —T-=—FF® 79
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FeRERER (@

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

2023 2022
—=ZE=-= —F-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNRESRE
Payments to deposits of leases MEZR SR (3,694) =
Refunds of deposits of leases REHNEERS 238 605
Purchase of property, plant and BAMZE - BB L&
equipment (28,391) (9,602)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEFEE (2,964) (1,766)
Proceeds from disposals of property, DEYE - BREREE
plant and equipment FriS 538 159 25
Net cash used in investing activities KRETETHH 2 F5E (34,652) (10,738)
Cash flows from financing activities BETHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMSHIEA 36 - 72,487
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 36 (5,712) (8,724)
Repayment of principal portion of lease EREHEEE A
liabilities 36 (46,614) (45,938)
Repayment of interest portion of lease BEMEAGZMNERD
liabilities 36 (40,311) (83,229)
Interest paid BAFE 36 (6,548) (6,209)
Net cash used in financing activities BETE T 2 FEE (99,185) (21,613)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and fﬁ,ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents W) N ERE (26,169) 40,058
Cash and cash equivalents at J.K‘ H HHWESR
1 January HEZEEY 66,171 26,113
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—HBWEHEE
31 December RESZEY 22 40,002 66,171
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 September 2006
as an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office and its principal place of business are
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and Level 4,
Jiahua Ming Yuan, No. 246 Xinhu Road, Baoan Central District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) respectively. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
“The Group” comprises the Company and its subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to
189 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The material accounting policy information that have
been used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarised in note 3. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRS and the impacts on the
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in note 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_T_=F+_A=1+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE

2.

82

—E-=F4+_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 5.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties which are stated at fair values.
The measurement bases are described in the material
accounting policy information in note 3.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB152,578,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023, and as of 31 December 2023, the Group had
net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB138,916,000 and RMB13,168,000, respectively,
while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB40,002,000.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BTSRRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-Z-_=F+-A=1t—HILFE

PN
=]

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) have prepared a cash flow forecast covering
a period from the end of the reporting period to June
2025 (the “Cash Flow Forecast”). The Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and the Group’s available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The following considerations have been taken
into account in the Cash Flow Forecast:

@

(i)

On 14 March 2024, the Group has entered
into a loan agreement with a related company,
Shenzhen Baijiahua Group Company Limited
(“BJH Group”) in which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun
and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of Mr.
Zhuang Lu Kun have beneficial interests for
an interest-free and unsecured loan facility of
RMB50,000,000 for the period from 15 March
2024 to 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the loan
agreement, the Group is able to draw down the
loan anytime during the facility period and repay
the outstanding amount at the end of facility
period. Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the
Group has not drawn down such loan facility;

The Group has also obtained the financial
support from BJH Group to provide continuing
financial support to the Company including but
not limited to additional fund lending and defer
lease payments to BJH Group and its subsidiary
as and when needed, so as to enable the Group
to meet its obligations and liabilities as and when
they fall due and to continue its day-to-day
business operations as a viable going concern
notwithstanding any present or future financial
difficulties; and

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o
ma

BARSERARMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—ALFE

2.

84

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

(iiiy The management of the Group has been
endeavouring to enhance its operation to improve
its cash flow from operations to strengthen its
working capital.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to finance its operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the Directors considered that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty exists
related to the above conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern, and therefore it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Whether the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern would depend upon the Group’s ability
to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows through (i) BJH Group would be able to provide
the necessary funds upon drawdown by the Group; (ii)
successfully obtaining continuing financial support from
BJH Group; and (i) successfully generating sufficient
operating cash flows based on its forecasted revenue.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to reduce the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is the Company’s presentation and functional
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousands except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=#+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (i) the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.3

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 54 years or over the
terms of land use rights,

whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 5to 10 years or over the

lease terms, whichever is

shorter
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles and tools 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment properties are
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently
at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit
or loss.

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss and included in administrative expenses.
The useful lives and amortisation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years

(ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

(iii) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.5

3.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible
assets are tested for impairment by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see note 3.6).

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of assets (other than financial
assets and intangible assets not yet available for
use) to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EAESHEERE
INFORMATION (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the R EEEREEED - A&
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised EZRmENEEAETKE 2
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the KASET T8 - RTINS
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying REEN]BARKZBTFE
amount that would have been determined had no IR E ERRREBERE
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior EBr2EEE - - RESEBRED
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as BN R A UA ©

income immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash FREBENDREBEEHSREE
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash- ERREEEEMHMFTARRK
generating unit, discounted to their present value using RensmRE=HIRE @ WHF
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market RARMIBITMISHEERERE
assessments of the time value of money and the risks ENFEREESRESEASE
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit. i 2 5 72 [ Bg2 B BR A5 A B 3R =

MIREHEBE -

i) Sale of goods @i HEEM
The Group sells goods directly to retail customers REEREEEEER
within retail stores. Revenue recognised from sale TERPHEEEm - B
of goods is recognised at a point in time when $H & P m FE R UL ER Ty
the product is transferred to the customers. RELEBRER PR
There is generally only one performance FEHER - BEEE—
obligation. Payment of the transaction price is HREHNEE - RSER
due immediately when the customers purchase B IE B i oo B
the good. Discounts, coupons and other cash BT - RETFEP
incentive to customers are accounted for as WP - BESF R EHAM
reduction of the transactions prices. REBBRINRARHE
B, ©
Some of the Group’s contracts with customers REBERBHE R mH
from the sale of goods provides customers a ETEFEOREFIE
right of return. These rights of return allow the HREHE  ZFREHE
returned goods to be refunded in cash. The right FFREEmKEESE
of return gives rise to variable consideration. SRR - REEEET
The variable consideration is estimated at BRE - JEREDIR
contract inception and constrained until the A # AR R A ET I 2R
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. FIEEETET R
The application of the constraint on variable FRIFRR - HATBKE
consideration increases the amount of revenue #Y BRIl FE FR IS N A8 = IR
that will be deferred. In addition, a refund liability FER Y es 2 5R o Bk -
and a right to recover returned goods assets are RREAE R B4R [
recognised. 72 o & 72 B RE T T DARE

HERERREBRAR —F-=FF8 89
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Commissions from concessionaire sales

The Group recognises commission income over
time which it is entitled and is based on certain
percentage of sales made by the concessionaires
in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When they fail to meet the minimum guarantee
income in accordance with the terms of certain
contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that
the Group has the right to receive. Invoices are
usually payable from 30 to 90 days.

Customer loyalty programme and prepaid gift
cards

The Group operates a customer loyalty
programme where retail customers accumulate
points for purchases made which entitle them
to redeem award points for discounts in future
purchase. The transaction price of award points
is allocated to the product and the award
points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Revenue from the award points and
prepaid gift cards is recognised when the award
points and prepaid gift cards are redeemed.
Contract liabilities are recognised until the award
points and prepaid gift cards are redeemed.
Contract liabilities in relation to customer loyalty
programme and prepaid gift cards were included
in contract liabilities.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration,
the Group recognises the amount of
consideration to which it is entitled using the
most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is
entitled. The amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent). The Group is a principal
if it controls the specified goods or service
before that goods or service is transferred
to a customer. The Group is an agent if its
performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified goods or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not
control the specified goods or service provided
by another party before that goods or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group
acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire
sales as the Group does not control the specified
goods provided by the concessionaires before
the goods transferred to a customer.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 3.8.

v)

(vi)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Administration and management fee income
The Group provides administration and
management service to operators of
concessionaire counters and tenants. The
administration and management fee income is
recognised overtime when the Group transfers
the control of services over time based on
the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided, as the operators of
concessionaire counters and tenants receive and
consume the benefits simultaneously. Invoices
are usually receivable from 30 to 90 days.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate using effective interest method.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents rights to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligations to transfer services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration,
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

3.8 Leases

U]

The Group as a lessee

All leases are capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The Group determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
both: (i) periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (ii) periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option.
In assessing whether a lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Group as a lessee to exercise the option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.8 Leases (Continued)

U]

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for
leasehold buildings which is held for own use
under HKAS 16 and are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation. The Group also has
leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its
judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset from the leasehold buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use
assets arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification,
or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (an
extension to the lease term), the lease liability is
remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use
asset being adjusted by the same amount. If the
renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope
of the lease, both the carrying amount of the
lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced
by the same proportion to reflect the partial or
full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability
is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated
payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the rate
applicable on the modification date and the right-
of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.8 Leases (Continued)

(ii) The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the leases transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as
two separate leases. The sub-lease is classified
as a finance or operating lease by reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration
for a lease that was not part of the original terms
and conditions of the lease are accounted for
as lease modifications. The Group accounts for
a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments as
income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

3.9 Inventories and consumables

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of merchandise, representing the purchase cost, is
calculated on the first-in first-out basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
to sale.

Consumables for own consumption are stated at cost.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. SASHKEER(HE)
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences. Except for goodwill not deductible for tax
purposes and initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that are not part of the business combination which
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences
are not arisen from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rate appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.10

3.11

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within 3 months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at bank, excluding bank balances
that are subject to third party contractual or/and
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

EXETTHERER (&)

3.10 FriEH (&)

3.11

HNFEEEH AT ER AR
EEEAAREHN—MRMBETEM
5 B EGISMER - BIRE
MERRIBEB L ST ERF 057
[REME MR A FES
PRIFZRE R HER - TRIZE
BREMFEZEERALE - T
A EZ SR EMERATER
BE - URZERREEHZ
FREERTE - WIREWEA
RITELRE—ERHERAM
A MzxEEREANENE
b= By R RS OB FERX D 36 P
BEIR B AR 4B A 25 (1 A
EBBHE)R - ZERER B
# -

ReRBRSEEY
IEARSRERME - RE
RIREFEY T B RIRT
R~ RITAMFFARAIEE
REZRSENBERT - EE
SRR IABBHREE(—K
REBAKR=EAREIE) 2]
keEnakE(REMER=
BEASKIAT) -

SERAMBIOAEAME - RE
kR EEY AL ERS B
B2 FEMBRTRETIBER
F=TANE MEERHIE
BHERBEITETAREER
BIRITHE(RE=FaH,
rEERVSBLERETH
HEaReTENRITHBLR
) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=#+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.12 Financial instruments

U]

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. Trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Debt instruments

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.12 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Measurements of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)
Measurements of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on lifetime ECLs except when there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the allowance
will be based 12-month ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.12 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credlit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) significant financial
difficulty of the debtor; (i) a breach of contract,
such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; (iii) it is probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; (iv) significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtors; or (v) the disappearance of an
active market for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at
amortised costs. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost including trade payables, deposits received,
other payables and accruals, amount due to a
director and borrowings are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.13 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
government, the Group participates in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement
Scheme”), whereby the subsidiaries of the Company in
the PRC are required to contribute certain percentages
of the basic salaries of its employees to the Retirement
Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the subsidiaries of the Company
in the PRC. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the Retirement Scheme is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the Retirement
Scheme. Contributions under the Retirement Scheme
are charged to profit or loss as incurred. There are
no provisions under the Retirement Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. There are no provisions under
the Retirement Scheme whereby forfeited contributions
may be used to reduce future contributions.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.14

3.15

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.16

3.17

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iiiy is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTEERERE)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.17 Related parties (Continued) 3.17 E@HH (48)
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the ) FEATEMEHENE

following conditions apply:

(i)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)()) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.17

3.18

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS 4. AR RLIETE BB BEIR
P-4

(@ Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1 (@ ERENETR]RIBET BB

January 2023 WEEA -——F-_=F—F#

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new/amended HKFRS that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

—BEX

BRI AGERMZER

AEBEAE

FHEAM B R AR

el BRI BB S RE L

ay:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and BERUBHRE REBEOK
related Amendments AERIFEA755 EEEEET
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting BEAGETER ®EECE
HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Policies ERE NGNS =
Practice Statement 2 s sEZER
BBHREE2
SR(E ;JL")
Amendments to Definition of Accounting BEASFER FEHMEEH
HKAS 8 Estimates #8555 3
(BETA)
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets BEGEER RE—RH
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a F125% EENE
Single Transaction CHEN) ERBE
HHEARYIE
EFRIE
Amendments to International Tax Reform — BAEGEER ERRER
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules F125% BE %
({E5TA) HEZRA
#HA
Except as disclosed below, none of these new/ BRUAT TSN  ELFR]
amended HKFRS has a material impact on the Group’s KISFTM BB B RS LS
results and financial position for the current or prior REANEE RN RTHAR S4B

period. The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRS that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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110

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1
January 2023 (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the
term “Significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1
January 2023 (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments narrow the scope
of the recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of
HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new amendments on
temporary differences for transactions related to
leases as at 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
difference associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS 4. RAHFITRLBITEBHBR
(Continued) 28I (4%)

(@) Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1 (@)
January 2023 (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Continued)

The effects of the changes in the accounting policies
as a result of application of amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction on the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BRARENR] B RT BB %
WELEA-—FT-_=F—A
—BEME)

KRB RS ERE125 (18
AR EE-RGEENEER
BEMEBENELERE 2SR
RNFE(E)
HRERBEB G ERE 125
(BRI RN HE - FEANE
EXREEEBNREHIENE
AIMEBREABRE (L HES
THMBERNZENT

BE-Z-_=F+=-A=+-—
HIEFE

Amendments
to HKAS 12
ERaER
SE125% 2 (18R] 2R)
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Impact on loss for the year HEXERYZE
Increase in income tax credit FTiS Rt 618 0 1,505
Decrease in loss and total comprehensive income for the  FRZAA &l A AJE(LEE &
year and attributable to owners of the Company ZEW B D 1,505

RMB cents
AR¥SD

Impact on basic and diluted loss per share YBEREARBEESNTE

Basic and diluted loss per share before adjustments AR EREAREFESE 14.85
Adjustments AR (0.14)
Reported basic and diluted loss per share EEMTRERNREEEE 14.71

112 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RETEIRRME (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS 4. RAHITRLBITEBYBR

(Continued) 2RI (48)
(@ Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1 (@) BRENFEE] BT E B H
January 2023 (Continued) WMEEA -——F-_=F—#8
—BEM(E)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 KABREBSTERE125: (5
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising FIREE-RGEENEER
from a Single Transaction (Continued) BEEBNELESE 25K
RHEE(1E)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—
AIEFE
Amendments
to HKAS 12
BASF A
21255 2 (185 A)
RMB’000
ARET T
Impact on loss for the year HEXERYZE
Increase in income tax credit FiS R 632 0 3,976

Decrease in loss and total comprehensive income for the FRAAAGHA ARLEEENEZE

year and attributable to owners of the Company Wz B RE R > 3,976
RMB cents
ARES

Impact on basic and diluted loss per share YBEREARBEEENTE
Basic and diluted loss per share before adjustments AEIEREAREGES 10.40
Adjustments AR (0.38)
Reported basic and diluted loss per share BEE2RERERNREEEE 10.02
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

114 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1
January 2023 (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Continued)

The effects of the changes in the accounting policies
as a result of application of amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction on the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of the immediately preceding
financial year, i.e. 31 December 2022 and the beginning
of the comparative period, i.e. 1 January 2022, are as
follows:

4. RMFEINEETERBMBR

2R (48)

(@) BRENETE] BT E B E
WERA -—F—=F—FH
—BEMEE)

31 December

+=

Deferred tax assets ELERBAERE
Total non-current assets FRBEELE
Total assets less current BEERTBAE

liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIBAE
Total non-current liabilities ~ JERB)E E A%
Net assets BEFE
Reserves i
Total equity ]

2022
Originally
stated
T
A=1+—H
RZ5
RMB’000
ARETTT

727,945

656,362

16,201

524,953

131,409

121,284

131,409

REAEESENFE1255 (5
AR EHE-RBEENEER
EEEENELERE 2SR
RHSE(ME)
HRERBS SR ELE125%
(BRI RN BB —RXHGEEMNE
E;aERENRERENS
EIME e BR S H B
BREER(EI—_E-_—F+=
A=+—8) k&Y
(ZZB—=—F—A—H)&E
BIISARR R AT ¢

31 December

2022
Adjustments Restated
—FT——
+-A=+—8H
HE =]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT
79,453 79,453
79,453 807,398
79,453 735,815
71,452 87,653
71,452 596,405
8,001 139,410
8,001 129,285
8,001 139,410
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS 4. RAHITRLBITEBYBR

(Continued) 28I (4&)
(@ Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective 1 (@) BRENFEE] BT E B H
January 2023 (Continued) WMEEA -——F-_=F—#8
—BEM(E)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 KABREBSTERE125: (5
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising FIREE-RGEENEER
from a Single Transaction (Continued) BEEBNELESE 25K
RHEE(1E)

1 January
2022 1 January
Originally 2022

stated Adjustments Restated
e e

—A—H —A-A

CEL] B £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Deferred tax assets RETRIBEE - 92,294 92,294
Total non-current assets FERENEERE 868,515 92,294 960,809
Total assets less current BEERRESAR

liabilities 766,494 92,294 858,788
Deferred tax liabilities ERBIEAE 20,101 88,269 108,370
Total non-current liabilities ~ 3E7iE) & E AR 527,188 88,269 615,457
Net assets BEFE 239,306 4,025 243,331
Reserves 5] 229,181 4,025 233,206
Total equity e 239,306 4,025 243,331
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

Amended HKFRS that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following amended HKFRS, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with

HKAS 1 Covenants'

Hong Kong Presentation of Financial
Interpretation 5 Statements — Classification
(Revised) by the Borrower of a Term

Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause!

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amended HKFRS is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

(@) Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimates (see below), that the Directors
have made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the Directors, at a
particular point of the time, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The Directors consider that the Group has the capability
to continue as a going concern and the going concern

assumption is set out in note 2(b).

BEEZEE A RMAAEER
ENEERR

RERAREENETRERE -  EFA
HARRUEMIREENEEN BE
B RREMEE B # B - fAEt R BR& -
RAfhET MR R RRIABERL R L EA
HERBBENARSKE - ERER
A REA BRI F 5T

Er AR RR AR ERA - MEa
AETETER B ERETNAR -
AR @ E% MR ER - siiHE
RIYERR RARBMESERE - Ak
YRS T B9 BRI KR SR AR AR -

(@) REASTBERFNEEH

BR % R fhat R # T (30 BA

Sh - AT RESERERARRT

SRR BIE T ATER RS

HIT - R A B Rk PR
MERELREANTE

LRSS

BERE  EFHEREEREL
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SEBRNEREBEREEEL
B RBERKERRENME
2(0) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(@)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the
Group to make judgements and estimates. Specifically,
significant judgements include determining whether the
Group is acting as the principal in a transaction. The
Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group obtains
control of the products sold or services provided before
they are transferred to customers. If control is unclear,
when the Group is primarily obligated in a transaction,
is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in establishing
prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but not
all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on
a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to
the Group’s investment properties has been measured
based on the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts entirely through use.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(@)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Determination of lease term

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination the lease. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to terminate. The
renewal options for leases of properties for own use are
not included as part of the lease term as these are not
reasonably certain to be exercised.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. However,
existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, assets were
tested at cash-generating unit(s) (the “CGU(s)”) level.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value in use;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belongs.

Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates, annual projected revenue or the growth
rates in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Further information on impairment on property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are provided in notes 13, 14 and 16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EE2iU¥RAsFRER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EMFERFR(E)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Loss allowance for financial assets
Management estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on financial assets at amortised cost based
on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit loss of the
respective financial instrument. The assessment of the
credit risk of the respective financial instrument involves
high degrees of estimation and uncertainty about future
economic conditions which have an adverse effect
on debtors’ business, debtors’ creditworthiness, the
payment delinquency or default in interest or principal
payments. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss
may arise, accordingly.

Further information on the impairment assessment on
financial assets are provided in note 37(ji).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures investment properties at fair value.
Certain assets included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements also require disclosure of fair value.
Significant estimation and judgement are required to
determine the fair value.

The fair value measurement utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

® Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

For more information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, please refer
to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. oEEH

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared REBERBRRBITEFERN T D
segment information based on the regular internal financial NI BERBBELE DB RRE
information reported to the executive directors for their DEERUBRESELHASEEER
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business HERKEL D 5 Bl E TR K 2R B R AR AR
components and review of these components’ performance. DRBABRTE - MATESELHA
There are two business components/operating segments in the HER M EEFAR IS EE
internal reporting to the executive directors, which are operation S AFAKERERTERERE
and management of retail stores and other related businesses fth FERA TS LA IRt 2 AR TS o

and provision of financing services.

Operation and
management of
retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated

rerER
2EER Rt
H AR R SRR a6t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_E-=F+=A8

=t-HLEEE
Revenue from external customers  SMEER S UHA 351,428 2,538 353,966
Inter-segment revenue DREREMA - - -
Reportable segment revenue 2|5\ 351,428 2,538 353,966
Revenue recognition WATER

Timing of revenue recognition under  IRIEEBH#%3RE

HKFRS 15 AR FE 1557 R
WA 2 B
— At a point in time — R (ERFRE 2, 168,206 - 168,206
— Over time —R—EREEA 14,543 - 14,543
From other sources REEHA R 168,679 2,538 171,217
351,428 2,538 353,966
Segment results DEEE (116,092) (34,986) (151,078)
Other unallocated corporate income ~ E A ELREUA 19
Other unallocated corporate Hit kDB EERT
expenses (5,273)
Loss before income tax BRETSHRIEE (156,332)

HEBERRARAT —F-=FFR 123
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. 2HE

Operation and
management of

a8 (&)

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated
RERERE
ZEER R
Hit xR SRR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T AR®ET T
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_E-_=%+—-8
=t+—HLEE
Other segment information HihpEER
Interest income FSHA (661) (1) (662)
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE
(other than financial instruments) (BT AN 156,337 - 156,337
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESRH 1,184 98 1,282
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {#FREEENE 59,191 - 59,191
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - = K&
equipment wE 55,408 - 55,408
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE  HER
and equipment HBEE 86 - 86
Obsolete inventories written-off BREFEMH 97 - 97
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% « BiE K&
and equipment WE/BE 11,404 - 11,404
Impairment loss on right-of-use FRREERBERRE
assets 26,567 - 26,567
Impairment loss on intangible assets /& ERI{EE 18 1,839 - 1,839
Impairment loss on loan receivables B E FURIEE 18 - 36,377 36,377
Decrease in fair value of investment & MENFERD
properties 12,600 - 12,600
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. EEHGE)

Operation and
management of
retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated

KERER
FEER Rt
HAt BB SRR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T T ARBT R

At 31 December 2023 N-_B-=%+-A
=+—H

Reportable segment assets AERNEEE 774,851 361 775,212
Tax recoverable AR ERIE 19
Deferred tax assets EETIREE 87,223
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ HRDELREEE 34,921
Total assets wEE 897,375
Reportable segment liabilities AERNEEE 808,536 100 808,636
Provision for taxation TIAR 9,070
Deferred tax liabilities EEIEEE 90,768
Other unallocated corporate liabilities  E R DB EE & 2,069
Total liabilities =i 910,543
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6.

126

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. 2HE

Operation and
management of

a8 (&)

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated
RERER
TEER et
H A ERIZETS © BRI &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT ARETTT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—E-_—%+=-8
=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers HNEBE P IR 330,001 5,271 335,272
Inter-segment revenue AERBA - = =
Reportable segment revenue A2/ BRA 330,001 5,271 335,272
Revenue recognition WATERR
Timing of revenue recognition under  RIEEE I 15k E 8|
HKFRS 15 E155R RN 2
]
— At a point in time — R AR R 182,773 = 182,773
— Over time —N—BREEA 23,039 - 23,039
From other sources REEMIRR 124,189 5,271 129,460
330,001 5,271 335,272
Segment results PEEE (109,591) 3,589 (106,002)
Other unallocated corporate income ~ E AR E R EUWA 254
Other unallocated corporate Hi AR 3AT
expenses (4,641)
Loss before income tax BRETSHRIEE (110,389)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. EEHGE)

Operation and
management of
retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated

mErER
TEER et
Sl E S SRR bt
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—_E-_—%+=-8

=t—HLEE

Other segment information HihpEER
Interest income FEKA (160) (4) (164)
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE

(other than financial instruments) (Brem I AN 15,645 - 15,645
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH 1,108 97 1,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ REBENE 58,361 = 58,361
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - BiE R &EITE

equipment 60,127 = 60,127
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BE&EE

and equipment B8 158 = 158
Written-off of property, plant and WE - RS AR

equipment 1 - 1
Obsolete inventories written-off BREFEMH 31 - 31
Impairment loss on property, plant 1% ~ R KRR (E

and equipment [t 3,891 = 3,891
Impairment loss on right-of-use FRREERBERRE

assets 12,915 - 12,915
Impairment loss on loan receivables ~ FEWE 7 2 JFiEE 18 - 881 881
Decrease in fair value of investment & MENFERD

properties 15,600 - 15,600
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operation and
management of

D EE R ()

128

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated
M%&Eﬁ
=z =] E& }Ef?ﬂi
HAh AR 275 © BARTE &bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARETIT
(restated)
(E71))
At 31 December 2022 NR-_B-—F+-A
=
Reportable segment assets ERNBEE 825,631 35,241 860,872
Tax recoverable TH&Z@%RIE 66
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 79,453
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ EHRDEREEE 35,488
Total assets HBEE 975,879
Reportable segment liabilities EmHBAE 737,486 83 737,569
Provision for taxation %Rléiﬁéﬁ 9,214
Deferred tax liabilities FEREBIEAE 87,653
Other unallocated corporate liabilities  E R D BB EE & 2,033
Total liabilities HmeE 836,469

The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group. The country
of domicile is determined by referring to the country which
the Group regards as its home country, has the majority of
operations and centre of management.

No separate analysis of information by geographical is
presented as the Group’s revenue and non-current assets, are
principally attributable to a single geographical region, which is
the PRC.

Information about a major customer

There was no single customer that contributed to 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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7.

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7.
Revenue
The Group is principally engaged in operation and
management of retail stores and other related
businesses and provision of financing services. Revenue,
which is also the Group’s turnover, represents invoiced
value of goods sold, net of value added tax and after
allowances for returns and discounts, commissions from
concessionaire sales, rental income and interest income
from financing services. Revenue recognised during the
year is as follows:

(@)

(@)

WA R H A EE A

'ON
REBETEXBREENER
TEERE AR IR
SRR - WA (TMAREEZ
BERE)  HELERNKRIEE
MEGRE RIrHERE - EEH
EFREMAT  HeWARREH
TRURISPIEENFIE 228
BHREE - FRERNORAD
T @

2023 2022
—=E2-= — -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Revenue from Contracts with ERMEREERE155
Customers within the scope of HEAZEFELMN
HKFRS 15: WA
Sales of goods HEEm 168,206 182,773
Commissions from concessionaire EEHEMSAS
sales 14,543 23,039
182,749 205,812
Revenue from other sources: FEHHAMIRAWA :
Rental income from investment BEMEHHES A
properties 9,360 9,070
Rental income from sub-leasing of AIEEFFERES WA
shop premises 44,418 42,459
Rental income from sub-leasing of AIEEISIFERES WA
shopping malls 114,901 72,660
Interest income from financing KA © BARTS < F 2 WA
services 2,538 5,271
171,217 129,460
353,966 335,272
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7.

130

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME
(Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

(@)

(b)

WA R EAtb & WA (&)

(@)

WA (&)
TREH®EEREETFPALHN
JEWE AR A NABER -

2023 2022
—E== —F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
Trade receivables (Note 20) e E 5 R R (KMI7E20) 1,528 1,923
Contract liabilities (Note 24) ERamE(E24) 13,051 19,794
Other operating income (b) Hb&KEWA

An analysis of the Group’s other operating income is as
follows:

REBEAMLEWA Z DT
T~

2023 2022

—EgE-= —ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Interest income FEWA 662 164

Government grants (Note) EdsEEENNED) 1,000 3,810
Administration and management fee TR EIRE UL A

income 23,610 24,617

COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-198 R SER - 10,840

Net exchange gain RIS TR 36 353

Others EAtb 9,905 12,048

35,213 51,832

Note:

Various local government grants have been granted to subsidiaries of
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
The amounts mainly represented unconditional cash subsidies from
government for subsidising enterprises as an encouragement for the
contribution in specific industry in the region during the year ended
31 December 2023 and for the contribution in specific industry in the
region and remedy for COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 31
December 2022, respectively. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attaching to these government grants.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

GEE

HE-_ZT-_=FR=-T-_-_F+=A
=+—BIEFEARRZHBEA R
FBRAETZERY BE_T==F
ToA=1+—ALEEZSBEEERHK
REMECEMREHOEGER W
B URBE-E-_—F+-A=+—
AILFEHZME RS EEENT MR
HEER B ZHE - ZFETHE &
MR BRI AEIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42 AR

VIFERRMEE (&)

N =

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

FINANCE COSTS

BB A

2023 2022
—ZE_= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFEB 40,311 33,229
Interest on borrowings BEFE 6,548 6,209
46,859 39,438
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRET1SFLAIE 8

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRETS T AT IR T ME%,(GTA) T
JISRGE

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold recognised as BRAERIMNEERE
expense [B%N 139,169 168,004
Auditor’s remuneration: ZHEN &
— Annual audit —FEE 917 916
— Other audit and non-audit services —H BT RIEEET
R7% 183 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment (Note 13) (fF3E13) 55,408 60,127
Depreciation of right-of-use assets: FEREEENE :
— Properties leased for own use (Note 14) —BREEYE
(BizE14) 58,930 58,100
— Leasehold land for own use (Note 14) —BAMEELH
(BizE14) 261 261
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mR A EEHE(M16) 1,282 1,205
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BRE RE&E
equipment E1E 86 158
Short term lease expense (Note 14) REAR SR (FizE14) 1,705 920
COVID-19-related rent concessions FHEIEEREeES
(Note 14) (FtsE14) - (10,840)
Obsolete inventories written-off BRETF EHMH 97 31
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y -~ BE MR ERE
equipment (Note (i)) (Note 13) B8 (P () (FEE13) 11,404 3,891
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERE
(Note ()) (Note 14) (BfF=EG) (P E14) 26,567 12,915
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmREEREEIE
(Note (i) (Note 16) (B &EGi)) (MIRE16) 1,839 =
Written-off of property, plant and M - RS AR R
equipment (Note 13) (Mf7E13) - 1
Net exchange gain RIS TR (36) (353)
EEFEERAR AR —ZE-_=FFR 131



I
4
—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RETEIRRMET ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HItEE

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued) 9. PBRFISHIAIEE(E)

2023 2022
—ZE-= B

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments B LA - BEEEHE

(Note 31(a)) (Mf7E31(a))
Salaries and other benefits e MEART 61,279 58,929
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRSFT B 10,880 10,371
72,159 69,300
Rental income from investment properties REMEZHSWA (9,360) (9,070)
Rental income from sub-leasing of right-of- S FAFEAEEEUWRA
use assets
— Base rents - itk (155,494) (112,959)
— Contingent rents (Note (iii)) — ok AT & (BT (Gii)) (3,825) (2,160)
(159,319) (115,119
Total gross rental income LB WA (168,679) (124,189)
Less: Direct operating expenses arising from &, : ARG RBRIUE WA
investment properties that generated KRB E AR
rental income during the year BEELERY 2,923 1,394
Less: Outgoings of sub-leasing of right-of-use & : 2 {E BHEEER
assets 19,644 14,104
Net rental income SFHEBUA (146,112) (108,691)
Notes: BT
i) Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets [0) W - BERSEREAEEERES
had been included in selling and distribution costs. BEBENHE RS HEKAR -
(i) Impairment loss on intangible assets had been included in administrative (ii) EREAEREBBE SR TBAXA -
expenses.
(iii Contingent rents are calculated based on a percentage of the relevant (i) SRS TR IR & iR B AR R 4E
sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreements and do not ENETADLAE T MRBEER
depend on an index or a rate under operating lease. ETZHEESR R -
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HEZ

10.

T =HF+-A=1+—RHULFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT

FRisBiiE %

2023 2022
—=E2-= —EFE-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T

(restated)

(&%)

AR®TR

Current income tax BIERFTS AR

- PRC enterprise income tax — R EEMER 901 1,408

Deferred tax (Note 28) EIER A (KI5E28) (4,655) (7,876)
(3,754) (6,468)

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction
of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands during the year
(2022: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong for
the year (2022: Nil).

For a subsidiary of the Company in Guangxi, its PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided at the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%) for the year pursuant to
the privilege under the China’s Western Development Program.

A subsidiary of the Company in Shenzhen, namely /&I &=
FEMSEIRAR AT, is qualified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax of 15% as
approved by the PRC tax authority for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. The High and New Technology
Enterprise qualification is subjected to be renewed every three
years.

Other subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC were
mainly subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of
25% (2022: 25%) for the year under the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

AEBRFRBESHEINHASHES
MEBERELBEERAEENHRE(ZE
TTF )

BN AEBRFEAL TR A TG
FRERRBUSN - B BB NS
tEHBEH( T _—F - &) -

IARRREAN —HKMBAF - R
fE e BIPE BB KA B AT I EBER
FREFBECEAERIZERLEM
SHBHEAS%(ZTZZ4F : 15%) &

KRR RN EBRREITE
FEERPEREAER AR ES B
¥ WEAPBEBBEIFTIENE
BT =FR-_FT-_—_F+-R
=+—BHI=EFEMN15%EEME
RE ot EEES =F&H

N
IN°

AN A B K ST B E A B R B R
ANEEBRE T B PR S BRAR B BOR AR
1R25% (ZZ % : 25%) B X BMH
REIRREH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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134

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 10.
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss
at applicable tax rates:

FriS Bt % (4)
BEAR R E NG IE e Rt
BRZ HIE

2023 2022
—E== —F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
(restated)
D)
Loss before income tax PSR E 8 (156,332) (110,389)
Tax on loss before income tax, calculated BRETIS T AT BRI TIR -
at the rates applicable to loss in the tax REBTG A AR EE
jurisdictions concerned HRMBERTE (38,647) (27,784)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR S R S s & 17,480 11,314
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A RIS 5 2 (1,501) (1,952)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RIERH AR BT
-2 11,226 20,160
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference  REER A IEINE B IEER
not recognised MRS E 9,094 =
Others Efth (1,406) (8,206)
Income tax credit FrigHii e (3,754) (6,468)
DIVIDENDS 11. KRE

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on following

BREE
SEARBHEA AREERERN R E
SBER - IREBEATBIRRTE ¢

data:
2022
e
(restated)
(&%)

Loss (%]
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted A EERERNREEE

loss per share (RMB’000) BEREEARETIT) (152,578) (103,921)
Number of shares ik 4|

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &38R A1#EF 158

1,037,500,002  1,037,500,002

Basic and diluted loss per share (RMB cents) &FRREA & #55E518
(AR#SD)

(14.71) (10.02)

Diluted loss per share equals to basic loss per share, as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

EREEEERSENERELNESAE -
RRAHEZE-_ZT-_=—FKR=-_F-_=

+—A=+—HLFE WEEMA
BHEBH LB -
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BE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HItEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y¥  BERRE

Motor Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold Plant and vehicles fixtures and
buildings Improvements  machinery andtools  equipment Total

L 8 KER

HERT  MXRE  EEREE RERIA R e
RMBO0O  RMBOOD ~ RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBIOOD
ARETL  ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

At1 January 2022 R=8-=%-f-H
Cost AR 21357 335,107 13,767 9,232 109,422 488,885
Accumulated depreciationand  ZEHTERE

impairment (6,105) (175,214) (12,899 (7,524) (81,673) (283,415)
Net carrying amount REFE 15,252 159,893 868 1,708 27,749 205,470

Year ended 31 December 2022  HZ-E-—%+-f

=t-HLEEE

Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 15,252 159,893 868 1,708 27,749 205,470
Addttions RE = 5,624 997 - 2,91 9,602
Disposals e - - - 6] (174) (183)
Written off A - - = = (1) (1)
Depreciation e (304) (53,200) (237) (375) (6,002) (60,127)
Impaiment loss HEER - (3,891) - - - (3891)
Closing net camyingamount £ RIEEHE 14048 108417 1,628 134 458 150870
At 31 December 2022 and R-E--#+-R=1-H

1 January 2023 R-Z-=£-f-H
Cost WA 21,357 314,077 14,764 9,080 111,147 470,425
Accumulated depreciationand  ZEHTERAE

impairment (6,409) (205,660) (13,136) (7,756) (86,594) (319,555)
Net carrying amount RAFE 14,948 108,417 1,628 1,324 24,553 150,870
Yearended 31 December 2023 HZ-ZF_=£+-f

=t-RLFE

Opening net carying amount ENEEFE 14,948 108,417 1,628 1,324 24,553 150,870
Adations AE - 24,676 5 107 3,603 28,391
Disposals e - - - (115) (130) (045)
Depreciation e (304) (49,443) (212) (280) (5,169) (55,408)
Impairment loss HEER - (7,804) - - (3,600) (11,404)
Closing net carrying amount EXREEFE 14,644 75,846 1,421 1,036 19,257 112,204
At 31 December 2023 W-B-=#+-fA=1-H
Cost AR 21,357 331,506 14,763 8,796 113,923 490,345
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERRE

impairment (6,713) (255,660) (13,342) (7,760) (94,666) (378,141)
Net carrying amount RAFE 14,644 75,846 1,421 1,036 19,257 112,204

136 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
n'/j—\/\ﬁji&#&;ﬁmj.gi na

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-ZT-_=F+-A=1+—HLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation charges incurred for the year were recognised
as “selling and distribution costs” and “administrative
expenses” amounted to approximately RMB54,897,000 (2022:
RMB59,426,000) and RMB511,000 (2022: RMB701,000)
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no written off of
property, plant and equipment incurred. Written off incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were recognised as “other
operating expenses” amounted to approximately RMB1,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the management of
the Group identified impairment indicator of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets due to
the unfavourable performance of the Group resulting from the
deteriorated economic environment. Management has engaged
an independent professional valuer to assist the assessment of
the recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of a number of CGUs of the segment
of “operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses” to which the asset belongs when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, including
allocation of corporate assets when reasonable and consistent
basis can be established. Each CGU represents the Group’s
individual retail stores and shopping malls. Property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets set out
in notes 13, 14 and 16 respectively, including allocation of
corporate assets, that generate cash flows together have been
allocated to these individual retail stores and shopping malls.

The recoverable amounts of each CGU were determined based
on their value in use calculation.

ME - BERRE(E)

FREENESHERIHE KD HK
KIRTBAS |9 RIERHO AR
54,807,000 (2 =——F : AR
59,426,0007t) &2 A K #511,0007T(=
T —F: AR¥701,0007T) °

HE_ZT-=F+-A=+—HIF
[ WEME - BB MEEME o &
B —F+A=+—HULEFE
BERNMHEER A EMEEMY 4
AER#1,0007T °

HE_ZT-=F+-_A=+—HIF
B ERERERCERAIEERE
TE ARAEBEEEERRYE -

WEREE CRAREELREREAE
HIRRBRE - BEBECEE 25
S B L ERD LA B R A AT Uk Bl & 58
s 2 &im AEAELRE

RBRENARENMS @ E&EERNE
Effstalk e &5 - QI AREBER
BEMBIEEREBTEEREME
%%%yvﬁﬁéﬁiﬁumTW@ﬁ
C BERA R AT N — AR
M¢%QF BHEEEBMNIEAR
ESEMENZEERES - DRIER
BIzE18 ~ 14R1I6HRAEARESTEN
ME - BEMEE - FHREEENRE
WEE BRELCEEENSRE BED
REZERERITEE KA

ReELBUnAkOeBeE REE
REEEERE -
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13.

138

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The value in use was estimated with reference to the cash
flow projections based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by the Directors covering a period of the remaining
useful lives of the essential assets of each CGU (the “Projection
Period”), which represented the management’s best estimate
on the ongoing operation of the CGUs where the existing
CGUs will continue to operate in the foreseeable future and are
consistent with past actual outcomes, with pre-tax discount
rates ranged from 7.87% to 11.38% as at 31 December 2023
(2022: 8.79% to 32.14%). The annual projected revenue
over the Projection Period within five year ranged from
RMB12,713,000 to RMB43,352,000 (2022: RMB5,086,000
to RMB92,958,000). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate of 2% (2022: 2%), which does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market in which the CGU operates.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of five (2022:
two) CGUs are lower than their carrying amounts. For each
of these five (2022: two) CGUs, the impairment amount has
been allocated pro rata to each category of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets such that
the carrying amounts of each category of asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal, its value
in use and zero.

Based on the recoverable amount calculation and the
allocation, the carrying amounts of the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets were
written down to their recoverable amounts of approximately
RMB112,204,000 (2022: RMB150,870,000), RMB320,320,000
(2022: RMB296,092,000) (Note 14) and RMB6,306,000 (2022:
RMB6,463,000) (Note 16) respectively. As a result, impairment
loss of approximately RMB11,404,000 (2022: RMB3,891,000),
RMB26,567,000 (2022: RMB12,915,000) (Note 14) and
RMB1,839,000 (2022: Nil) (Note 16) have been recognised
against the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets respectively in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

13.

W% BERRE(E)

FREENZERBEEEME &N
BiETER - METGEREELESEME
ZF B AT 84 AT {5 AR 4 PR BB R ([ 7808
B 2B nEEAmE - %IBE
REEEBHASCESENFELE
RREMT - MEARSEEEMNE
] RASREERE  TEBENE
BEE— PR -_=F+—
A=+—8  BanRENF7.87%
E11838% (T - —fF : 879% &
32.14%) - AF ANTE R FE AR
WAN T AR#12,713,000cE AR
43352000 (ZTE-—F : AR
¥ 5,086,000 7T = A [ # 92,958,000
JC) © AR FHEAR e RE A
EaEt hiE R R2% (T = —4F :
2%) M ZEERTRBREE
EBEMCEEM S RBTFERER -

BEFTHER  ~EBEEEERTR

ZECF W) EARSELEEMD
A ESEERERAE - ZA(=
T oF W) ERSELEMMS
BESEEELONSEEDE BE
MR FRREEREREESE
Al BESEREENERTMERNS R
EERERAFERHEXRAN RS
B HEABENENRSE

BEATREDESENTERDER - W
¥ BELEE - CHRREEREFR
BEME@DES JIMREETKE S
A ARBE112,204,000 (2= =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
T=F+-A=+—HILFE

BE—

14.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

()

(i)

Properties leased for own use

The Group entered into various lease agreements
for retail stores, shopping malls and employees’
accommodation with independent third parties and the
related companies, namely BJH Group and Shenzhen
Jiahua Real Estate Development Company Limited (“JH
Real Estate”), companies in which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun
and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, have beneficial interests.

The leases with independent third parties have initial
period of non-cancellable leases between 2 and
12 years (2022: between 1 and 15 years) as at 31
December 2028.

The leases with related companies, BJH Group and JH
Real Estate, have initial period of non-cancellable leases
between 3 and 15 years (2022: between 2 and 14 years)
as at 31 December 2023.

Leasehold land for own use

The Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
land. The leasehold land will expire in 2066. Lump sum
payment has made upfront to acquire the land.

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

HE

REEERFEA
MEFBMHE (LUREASH)

(i)

(i)

EFRHEEYZE
AEEAETE =7 REB A
A BEEEZEERRFYITE
EEMERBEARAA([EFE
EibEE ) - (FEREHs A RER
BHEXBERZLIRZAREEE
wmiER)  EEME - BYE
LRETREBRZZEAEW
o

RZBEZ=F+=—A=+—
B S@BBYE=HMIHEEZ
AU RENSAERN T2 5
12F(ZF=_2F : NF1E15
F) o

RZFZ_=F+ZA=*+—
A HBEEAR WEEES
B R EEFEMEMIEEZT
AR A AERN FI3E15
F(ZFZZF N TF2E14
F) 2R e

ERHE L H

NEBERE *iiﬂgﬁﬁ’iiﬂ%ﬁ
A HE LR ZZTRNNEF
B o EWE TR ETE L —
EBATHE -

EHEEE
EREEELRBEERMNE DK

EFEDTAT

2023 2022

—E-= —F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Properties leased for own use BRHEEmE 309,224 284,735
Leasehold land for own use ERAE LT 11,096 11,357
320,320 296,092
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

14.

LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

14. HEE)

REBERFEAN (&)

EREEE (&)

Properties Leasehold
leased for land for
own use own use Total
BREEY% BAEELH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREETTT ARET T
At 1 January 2022 R —4F
—H—H 354,800 11,618 366,418
Additions NE 4,277 - 4,277
Depreciation e (58,100) (261) (58,361)
Effect of lease modifications HEEIINTE (3,327) = (3,327)
Impairment loss EEE (12,915) - (12,915)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZEZ=F+=H
1 January 2023 =t+—BK
—Eo=F
—H—H 284,735 11,357 296,092
Additions NE 124,982 - 124,982
Depreciation e (58,930) (261) (59,191)
Effect of lease modifications HEBTHTE (14,996) - (14,996)
Impairment loss RIEEE (26,567) - (26,567)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEBE-_=F+=A
Sar=Ig 309,224 11,096 320,320
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, BE_ T -_—FR=-F-_—_F+=H

=t HUEFE  @ERRBLER
REENKRRRE  WERERED
X BEIEE EREEERER
BELRRRARE - EREERE—
FE HEEERAR BT (A AT U@
ERMFHZ AR RBAELRE -

management identified impairment indicator of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets due
to unfavourable performance of the Group resulting from the
deteriorated economic environment. Management has engaged
an independent professional valuer to assist the assessment of
the recoverable amount.

ERTRAEEEIEECERERT
EE&&@@%%% MRS EE
BNHBENGEREHERELRE B
WFMIFE1S ©

The impairment assessment of the CGUs related to the
segment of operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses of which the right-of-use assets were
allocated to were summarised in note 13 to these consolidated
financial statements.
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14. LEASES (Continued) 14. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERAEAE)
Lease liabilities HE&AE

Properties

leased for

own use

BRAEENE

RMB’000

ARBET T

At 1 January 2022 R-_ZT-_—F—HF—H 473,476
Additions NE 4,277
Effect of lease modifications HEEIINTE (3,327)
Interest expenses FBRX 33,229
COVID-19-related rent concessions (Note) COVID-19f8FF R E = (FI7E) (10,840)
Lease payments HER (79,167)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZZBZ=ZF+=ZA=1+HAK

—FE-=%—H—H 417,648

Additions NE 124,982
Effect of lease modifications HEEIINEE (14,996)

Interest expenses BRI 40,311
Lease payments HER (86,925)
At 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=F+-H=+—8H 481,020

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
properties lease for own use across the Group. These are used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the mutual
agreement between the Group and the respective lessor.

Note:

The Group had elected to apply the practical expedient introduced by the
amendment to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria that
occurred as a direct consequence of COVID-19 pandemic. All of the rent
concessions entered into during the year ended 31 December 2022 satisfied
the criteria in HKFRS16.46B to apply the practical expedient. The application
of the practical expedient has resulted in the reduction of total lease liabilities
of approximately RMB10,840,000 as at 31 December 2022. The effect of this
reduction had been recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

BN R ILRERE
BHMRDEEREREAREST
BRMEHER - ZFEEETTAN
EERSEEAKEEBMAEEN
LEEMN - MR B RE L
EEREVHASEERBLEAE
T BEATEE °

p

AEEEREFEBVERS EF16RETA
SIAMEBRET 77 A ERNATECOVID-19Z1EE
BERFAEREANTESER -HE-_T =
FE+ZA=1+—HILFE FEIUNE2HHSE
BHFARARSVERELERE16.46BRME
BREEENER  c RZE_—F+_A=+—
B EABRETHEZEBEEAERERIY
AR ¥10,840,0007T » @B ZEBEER
B IE LN RO SR SR IR B A OB SR R TE 1B
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

14. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
Future lease payments are due as follows:

14. #HE(E)
REBEERFEBAA(E)
HEAE(E)

AREER KNGS RMT

Minimum lease Present
payments Interest value
BERAENK FE BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥T T AR®T T
At 31 December 2023 R-B_=%+—-A
Sar—Ig
Not later than one year TER—F 94,401 42,542 51,859
Later than one year and not BR—FRTER
later than two years N F 104,807 28,020 76,787
Later than two years and not BRME R TER
later than five years AnE 239,356 96,857 142,499
More than five years AFAE 296,108 86,233 209,875
734,672 253,652 481,020
Minimum lease Present
payments Interest value
SRR ER K A A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT ARETIT
At 31 December 2022 R-ZT__F+_H
=t+—H
Not later than one year TER—F 89,790 29,430 60,360
Later than one year and not BR—FRTER
later than two years R 91,486 25,222 66,264
Later than two years and not BRME R TER
later than five years HEF 232,079 46,303 185,776
More than five years FFEE 123,685 18,437 105,248
537,040 119,392 417,648
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14.

LEASES (Continued) 14. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERAEAE)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEaEE)
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RREENFHIRESTLAN :
2023 2022
—=E_= —EFE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current liabilities mEBE 51,859 60,360
Non-current liabilities BB E 429,161 357,288
481,020 417,648
2023 2022
—ZE—= —F--
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Short-term lease expense EERTERM S 1,705 920
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID- 198 & 2R - (10,840)
ERERIRERAT —E-SFFH 143
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. HE(E)
The Group as a lessor - Operating leases REBEAEEA-KEHE
The Group leases out the investment properties under operating AEBRBECEHEHAREMER
leases and sub-leases out a number of properties. EHRZEYE -
The total future minimum lease receivables under non- BRI AIREEE EHERBEIFE =
cancellable operating leases from independent third parties are TR KRR EE R IBEREAT
as follows:

2023 2022
—g== —E——

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
UN:L ARET T

Not later than one year TER—F 132,473 78,605
Later than one year and not later than BR—FERTERWE
two years 110,831 56,302
Later than two years and not later than BRMERTEBR=F
three years 83,122 36,938
Later than three years and not later than BR=F R TEREE
four years 65,388 23,416
Later than four years and not later than BRUFERTERAS
five years 48,397 20,116
Later than five years AENRE 63,460 61,177
503,671 276,554
The total future minimum lease receivables under non- RIBTATRGHEETE - BRI QD
cancellable operating leases from related companies, namely FAEEEBRMNEERMEZ AREK
BJH Group and JH Real Estate are as follows: R ERUGIBEZENT ¢

2023 2022
e = =

—_—_=—= —

RMB’000 RMB’000
UNL ARBTT

Not later than one year RN —F 3,223 3,821
Later than one year and not later than BR—F R TERMS

two years 3,263 2,418
Later than two years and not later than BRMTE R TBR=F

three years 1,692 2,458
Later than three years and not later than BR=F R TERES

four years - 1,692

8,178 10,389
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWXE

2023 2022

—E== —FE_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
At beginning of the year F5 258,600 274,200
Decrease in fair value of investment properties & ¥% A FER D (12,600) (15,600)
At end of the year FR 246,000 258,600

REVERREEESWRAMBERN
ETHEEAELMEET  MESEL

The investment properties represent various leasehold land and
buildings located in the PRC held for generating rental income

and the leasehold land will expire in 2066.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out at the date by Valor Appraisal & Advisory
Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group, who has appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is
provided below:

HEYBARR A TN FE i o

AREBREWEN T _ZFR_-F
T+ _A=+—HWMAFE T
ERERFEREMERARNRZHA
BITHHEESR  HARAEEME
BB — B LeEREEGER
7 WAEFGHEEEEUME S
HE BRI B -

BAMENATFEAFBERERT
B -

FURFRE N AL RE 0
T s

2023 2022
—ZE—= —F--
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F¥#E#A (FEIBREE M
ANEE) 258,600 274,200
Decrease in fair value of investment KREMEQNTFERD
properties (12,600) (15,600)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value)  FRAE#H(FEIBLE M
NFEE) 246,000 258,600
Change in unrealised losses for the year R+ A=+—8xnHEE
included in profit or loss for assets held at BEFAEBZNFTAR
31 December SR EEZE (12,600) (15,600)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWHE(E)
Fair values of investment properties are determined using the WEWMENAFEDEBRERNE(MA
investment method on the basis of capitalisation of the net MEFKRAE NNEE KO EER
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due KB FHESRARAREEETE °
allowance for reversionary income potential. The fair value NEEFTEEMSEAMESKEL
measurement is positively correlated to the market monthly ey ZE B REBIR L ©
rental rate and negatively correlated to property yield.
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
T E R EAELBEEZBAEY
At 31 December 2023
R-ZBZ=HF
+=A=+—8H
Investment properties Investment method Market monthly rental rate taking RMB90 to RMB300
into account of individual (2022: RMB90 to
factors such as location, floor, RMB300)
size. etc. (RMB/sg.m)
BEMEF BEE msEANRSTRAUE - 28 - AR¥QOILE
AEEEIER(ARE, AR¥E3007T
ERHAK) —E-
ARBOTE
AR#3007T)
Capitalisation rate of 4% 1o 5%
reversionary income (2022: 4% to 5%)
ERRARERN X 4% t0 5%
T F:
4%%E5%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the FARHERMI BRI EE) o
years.
The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ ANFEFEDER EMYESEITE
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use. FAOEA(EEERRAEMER)
As at 31 December 2023, the banking facility is secured by RZBZ=F+-A=+—08 - #17
certain portion of the Group’s investment properties amounted R E A E 49 A R#230,800,0007T
to approximately RMB230,800,000 (2022: RMB242,700,000) —=——fF : AR¥242,700,0007T)
(Note 27). HE T E D IR E WS VEHEIR (M5E27) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z_=F+-_A=+—RHIFE

16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2022

16. ELEE

R-B-—#—-A—H
BXA

Computer
software

ER R

RMB’000
AEBTT

Cost 8,326

Accumulated amortisation g £ (2,424)

Net carrying amount REFE 5,902

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E—_—f+=-A=+—H

IEFE

Opening net carrying amount FYRRENFE 5,902

Additions — externally acquired NE — INERUEE 1,766

Amortisation BgH (1,205)

Closing net carrying amount FEREEFE 6,463

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—-HEK

ZE-=%-A—H

Cost R 10,002

Accumulated amortisation e £ (3,629)

Net carrying amount BREFEE 6,463

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-_=f+-A=+—H

LEE

Opening net carrying amount FANAREFE 6,463

Additions — externally acquired INE — MBI EE 2,964

Amortisation s (1,282)

Impairment loss BB R (1,839)

Closing net carrying amount FRIEREFE 6,306

At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+-RA=1+-—8H

Cost AR 13,056

Accumulated amortisation and impairment BT RO E (6,750)

Net carrying amount REEE 6,306
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, BT =Fk-_ZF-_—"F+—H
management identified impairment indicator of property, plant —T—HIFE  AREERESRL
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets due BERAEREEITNE  BEEB#IL
to unfavourable performance of the Group resulting from the ME - BWENEE {EFH%%E&%
deteriorated economic environment. Management has engaged FEERE - B2 EH%E*Z%EE}
an independent professional valuer to assist the assessment of H(LER B AT Uk B £ 58 -

the recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment of the CGUs related to the
segment of operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses of which the intangible assets were
allocated to were summarised in note 13 to these consolidated

financial statements.

ﬁ%ﬁ'}ﬁ(«
BEE13 ©

EEREERERAR

ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁ/éﬁﬁ’\]g%ﬁlﬁﬁ)}ﬁm*ﬁ
7 2R FERA A

B4

TES A &
g%ﬁuam@ -—HEE?@K\$E & B
_"ﬁ
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BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

17. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 17. B f#&% AN RERHEMmE

148

RECEIVABLES WFIR
2023 2022
—E=q2-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Refundable rental deposits (Note (i)) MEZ e (FEE) 19,376 15,920
Current assets REBEE
Deposits paid Bfie 1,272 1,910
Prepayments SENECE 1,291 1,515
Advances to suppliers [ L FE g B K 1,411 992
Other receivables (Note (ii)) F A Wk aE (B i) 23,001 30,100
26,975 34,517

Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, included in the refundable rental deposits
of approximately RMB3,327,000 (2022: RMB3,327,000) and
RMB7,070,000 (2022: RMB5,946,000) represented rental deposits paid
to BJH Group and JH Real Estate, the related companies of the Group,
respectively.

Included in the balance was input value added tax (“VAT”) receivable
of approximately RMB17,719,000 (2022: RMB25,312,000) as at 31
December 2023. Input VAT arose when the Group purchases products
from suppliers and the input VAT can be deducted from output VAT on
revenue.

Except for input VAT receivables which had no expiry date, all other
receivables were repayable either on demand or within one year.

The Directors consider that the fair values of other receivables (current
portion), except for input VAT receivables, which are expected to be
recovered within one year are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
deposits and other receivables are set out in note 37(jii).
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RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—8 it AA
REIAERS RN ARYS327,000
T(ZT == : AR#¥3,327,0007T)
MAR¥T7,070,000t(ZE==F : A
R ¥£5,946,00070) 2 Bl A B EE S E &
FERME(NEEBBERR)ZFHMA
Bike -

HEHRPRER T _=Ft+-A=+—
B BTG E R (EER DHOAR
#17,719,000 (B = —4F : AR
25,312,0007T) ° A BAEHEEERE KR
SERRERKBERMES - WATR
Ueas P B SIS ERT IR -

B 3 4 0 0 A i A
5+ B R R R R —
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—ZXEENT2ES

2022
—g== —E——

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Share of net liabilities EiEaEFE (484) (484)
Goodwill B 600 600
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B RETRERE (116) (116)
Details of the associate as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, are RZEBE-_=FR_ZT-_—_F+=-H
as follows: =+—8  BEARFBEET
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
establishment and paid-up registered interest held by the  Principal activities and
Company name legal form of entity capital Company Indirectly  place of operations
SR RILGHR R AQFEERE FEEBR
ARER HEAER BEAREE EZES  SEmE
Shenzhen Egoos Mobile Internet  The PRG, limited liability RMB10,000,000 30%  Operation and management
Limited company of online sale in the PRC
FImBLBESDEHAERAR B BBREFAF  AR10,000,0007T 30% RPELLRERE HEE
In the opinion of the Directors, the above associate is immaterial EERE - LlBE AR EHAEEW
to the Group. TERK o
The summarised financial information of the associate is not HE_ZT-="FRk-_ZF-__F+=H
disclosed for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Ear— EI JLEBZ e N | I SR R
and the Directors considered the impact of it is immaterial HUBEREE  BEEERBER
in view of the insignificance of the carrying amount of this BENRZREABTAEKN @ RHEE
associate. BTHEEKN -
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19.

150

INVENTORIES AND CONSUMABLES

19.

FERZFEm

2023 2022

—=E2-= —EF_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Merchandise for resale EERmMm 4,577 10,120
Low value consumables KESFER 1,859 2,340
6,436 12,460

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on cash basis except for trade
receivables from certain bulk sales of merchandise to corporate
customers, rental income receivables from tenants and
loan receivables from provision of financing services. The
credit terms offered to the customers from operation and
management of retail stores and other related businesses are
generally for a period of one to three months (2022: one to
three months).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, loan receivables
from provision of financing services of RMB5,000,000,
RMB7,000,000 and RMB8,000,000 are repayable within
the second quarter, third quarter and last quarter of 2023,
respectively and the remaining balances are repayable on
demand.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, loan receivables from
provision of financing services are repayable on demand.
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=@R) -

BT =—F+_-_A=+—HIF
E - BRSREBENETERARE
5,000,0007T * A R #¥7,000,0007T &
AR #8,000,0007t D RIER T ==
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

20.

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20.

EREZERARER(E)

2023 2022
—=E_= —EFE-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Trade receivables (Note (i) FEU B S ERF (ML) 30,514 19,581
Loan receivables (Note (ii)) FEUCE ZR (B =E(i)) 38,054 34,567
Less: loss allowance (Note 37(ii) R BT R (MRES7 (i) (38,054) (881)
- 33,686

30,514 53,267

As at 31 December 2023, included in trade receivables of
approximately RMB28,986,000 (2022: RMB17,658,000)
represented rental income receivables from tenants of which
approximately RMB210,000 (2022: RMB28,000) was pledged
to secure the banking facility (Note 27) and RMB1,528,000
(2022: RMB1,9283,000) represented receivables from sales of
goods (Note 7(a)).

As at 31 December 2023, included in trade receivables of
approximately RMB547,000 (2022: RMB682,000) represented
trade receivables due from related companies.

Trade receivables were non-interest-bearing. Loan receivables
from provision of financing services which bore interest at
fixed rates with effective interest rates at 15% (2022: 15%) per
annum. The loan receivables are secured by the borrower’s
right over the trade receivables of the sales contract with its
customer and with recourse.

RZZBZ=F+=-A=+—H i A
FEUE 5 BR R E 4 A K ¥ 28,986,000
T(ZEZ=F : AR¥ 17,658,000
TEBRARHES KA - ERHA
R#210,000T(ZE=-—F : ARK
28,0007T) B EHIERITR & MR
(MF=E27) - B - #9 ARMEA,528,000
TT(ZEZ=F  AR¥1,923,0007T)
FREUBUHE & R (FI3E7(@) °

AZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H " §A
FEE BRF WO AR®ES47,000T(=
T —F : AR¥E82,0007T )5 B
BEARZERE ZR -

BRESERBEE - RESRER
2B EZME15E 2 EE B
FRR(ZZ-_—F :15F) - ERE
RAERABEERSHEIABR
EREERNNERE S REFEFRIE
R -

HEBERRARAT —F-=FFR 151



I
4
—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RETEIRRMET ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HItEE

20.

152

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

20.

EWE SRR ER (&)
GEE

() REE 2 BWE Z BRI E R B B0k
AT

2023 2022

—EB-=F —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFT
Within 30 days 30HA 29,199 12,585
31-60 days 31E60H 695 1,657
61-180 days 61£2180H 617 4,438
181-365 days 181£365H 2 862
Over 365 days HBiB365H 1 39
30,514 19,581

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade receivables which
are expected to be recovered within one year are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inceptions.

The aging analysis of the Group’s loan receivables (net of impairment
loss) is as follows:

Repayable on demand or within one year BNERB K —F A

EERA ARZSESRRELRER
AR - EER —FAKREE ERE
SEFNATERERAEYEEAE
2.

(i AR B EAE R ERE (AR EER)
DITEAT =

2023
S

—=F—=

RMB’000
AR®T T

B’000
BT

The Directors consider that the fair values of loan receivables which are
expected to be recovered within one year are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inceptions.

During the year, the Group has entered into an agreement with the
debtor of loan receivables, Shenzhen Congzhong Dianzi Keji Company
Limited (“Congzhong”) of loan receivable for the new repayment terms
(the “New Repayment Schedule”). Pursuant to the New Repayment
Schedule, Congzhong is required to repay the aggregate principal and
interest amount at a minimum of RMB5,000,000, RMB7,000,000 and
RMB8,000,000 within the second quarter, third quarter and last quarter
of 2023 respectively.

In June 2023, the Group did not receive the scheduled repayment from
Congzhong, the Group has commenced legal proceedings against
Congzhong for failing to repay the principal and interest according to the
contract terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-"A=+—HIFE

20.

21.

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(continued)

In July 2023, the court has announced its judgement that Congzhong is
required to: () repay the outstanding principal amount of approximately
RMB32,900,000 and its related interests to the Group within 10 days
from 31 July 2023; and (i) Congzhong is required to pay to litigation fee
of approximately RMB220,000 to the Group.

In August 2023, the court has issued the notice for sealing up,
distraining and freezing various properties of Congzhong and its
legal representatives. These frozen properties of Congzhong initiated
by the court comprised of cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB10,000 and a residential property located in
Shenzhen.

As Congzhong has not fulfilled the legal responsibility to the Group in
accordance with the court decision, the Group has lodged application for
compulsory execution of the decision by the court and the compulsory
execution has been approved by the court in December 2023.

Up to 31 December 2023, the Group did not receive any compensation
from Congzhong.

The Directors considered that the outstanding loan receivables to be
credit-impaired, impairment loss on loan receivables amounted to
approximately RMB36,377,000 was made, which has been recorded in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade and loan receivables are set out in note 37(jii).

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

Restricted bank deposit amounted to RMB2,000,000 (2022:
RMB2,000,000) represented the bank deposit restricted for the
repayment of the principal and interest of the secured bank loan
required by the bank (Note 27).

20.

21.

EEREERERAQA]

EREZERARER(E)

izt - (%)
(ii) (%)

—TE=F+A  EREHEHR - Bk
KRB (BT =_=FtA=+—Hit
10RRNAAKEEEREELASHOAR
#£32,900,0007C & E B FI S ¢ K (i) #E
FBARNAEEXNFABAHARE22
BT e

—E_=FN\A ERTEEZEH M
A ORERBRREEERIEAZIRWE
FBAE AR B RRENERYEE
BREASRASEENOARKIET
ARARAFYN — BB EEDE ©

I PME R AR BOERT HIR BITH AR S B/
EREME AKEERVARRE L&
AT AR  XER T =%
T RESAB I AR BIIAT ©

HE_Z-_=F+-A=+—0H £&&
BRI B AR AOFHE -

EERAAEENEREREZREREH
BIE - RIIERERREBBOARE
36,377,0007C ' WEFHAHEZE=T==
E+-A=+—RAIEEZEH%-

ERAEERKESEANEREL
NEEBCR R EERBAE—PFE
BRI 5ES7 (i) ©

ZRHEIRITEFER

2R R 1717 58 B A R #E2,000,0007T
(ZZ =% : AR¥2,000,0007T) °
15 ZPR H AR B AR 1T Bk (E B B K I
IRITERA S MA B ARITF R (K s
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-ZT—

22.

154

=F+-H=1+—HLFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22.

RERREEEY

2023 2022
—_=E_= —=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 40,002 66,171
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of R &GAREXRANIIRE KL
consolidated statement of cash flows BeEEY 40,002 66,171

The Group had cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
and held in the PRC of approximately RMB36,359,000 (2022:
RMB62,508,000) of which the remittance out of the PRC was
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

The cash at banks bore interests at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 December 2023, certain bank
deposits bore interest at floating rate with effective interest rate
was 1.27% (2022: 0.30%) per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms granted by suppliers are generally for a period
of 30 to 60 days (2022: 30 to 60 days). The aging analysis of
the trade payables, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

23.

$%@L\M\Eﬁﬁsﬂﬁjﬂ£ﬂh B %
EMReRBITEBHNBARE
%&wmwd_v__ﬁ ARK
62,508,0007T) + E A& H A B 2 I8
A B BT e A INE B IR B4R
R o

RTINS HZERETE - WIRFRHIET
GRAEHE - R _FBE-_=F+=A
:+ B BFRITTFRIEZEEG

8 BERFMNEREI2IBE(ZE =
i-owr)

BN E 5 R

HENRENEESR MR AI0ZE60H

(ZE-—% :30260H) - ERNES
BRIREE A BRI AT T -

2023 2022

—E_= —F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 30 days 30HA 25,605 27,020
31-60 days 31260H 10,370 13,020
61-180 days 612180H 3,974 5,858
181-365 days 1812365H 607 2,071
Over 365 days 3658 LA 6,014 6,060
46,570 54,029

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of
the Group’s trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities

24. BWER

2023

2=

RMB’000
AR®TR

aHEE 13,051

2022

—— —

=

RMB’000
ARETT

19,794

2023 2022
—E-= —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Contract liabilities in relation to: EHAaBES K
Operation and management of retail stores &2 N ERTEEREM
and other related businesses el
— Prepaid gift cards —FEEmT 10,403 10,299
— Customer loyalty programme —RPEREYERE 2,648 9,495
13,051 19,794
EEFEERERAR —T_=FFIR 155
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BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 24, %,%’\J aE (&)
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the EHBEREESHREDEIEER
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that LEXJEQJTEE’J XS BIHEEE - N&E
are unsatisfied as of each reporting period. The Group expects BB B ARA E‘%g}fﬁ,ﬁﬁiﬁ &
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance FIRFENERTHERBESRN - 26
obligations will be recognised as revenue when the award iﬂiLJﬂZJ@%’]fEH’JX%ETﬂﬂ—IEW
points in relation to customer loyalty programme and prepaid BUA o

gift cards are redeemed.

Movements in contract liabilities EHEEEH

Award points

under customer

Prepaid loyalty
gift cards programme Total

EFRE

XEFTET
ENEmF ZRBRD #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR®TR AR®TR

At 1 January n—A—H 10,299 9,495 19,794
Decrease in contract liabilities as G RHE I F 1)

aresult of recognising revenue st AA LB ER

during the year that was included  U4g A TTEELA 47

in the contract liabilities at the aERD

beginning of the year (10,299) (9,035) (19,334)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEFEEN 10,403 2,188 12,591
At 31 December w+=—A=+—H 10,403 2,648 13,051

Award

points under

Prepaid customer loyalty
gift cards programme Total

EPRH

XREHET
BHESE  2EBES it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETx

At 1 January n—A—H 11,098 8,960 20,058
Decrease in contract liabilities as G RHE R R T 1)

aresult of recognising revenue st AA KB ER)

during the year that was included W A& A %)

in the contract liabilities at the aERS

beginning of the year (11,098) (539) (11,637)
Increase in contract liabilities BB EE N 10,299 1,074 11,373
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 10,299 9,495 19,794
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BE-T-=—F+-A=+—ALFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities (Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Prepaid gift cards

The Group sells the prepaid gift cards and receives cash at their
fair value to the customers who redeems the prepaid gift cards
for future purchases. The prepaid gift cards are non-refundable
and with no expiry date.

Award points under customer loyalty programme

Under the Group’s customer loyalty programme, customers
who participate in the loyalty programme can earn award points
by spending. Valid awards points as at end of reporting period
are with no expiry date. The customers can redeem anytime at
their discretion.

25. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND

24. SRNEEE)

BREBEEEH(E)
HERAENABRSEBRTEZ—
SRR T

BEfEmT

AEEREREHERNERRLRRL
BmEMNERRAMERREENTP A
AFEREBRE - BfEm RN
RO B EEYHR

EFRAXEHET 2RBED
EAEBEzEPREXFHET 2
HEPRAXFIEAZEEAAHE
RIEBEY BEBREHRZAR
REESUEERAR - FPAATT
IRTEHERT H R o

25. BlRE  HttENRERE

ACCRUALS TEH
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Deposits received Bilize 53,071 41,044
Other payables (Note) E Ao sRIE(FRE) 39,580 32,227
Accruals FEETE 25,890 17,625
118,541 90,896
Note: BT

As at 31 December 2023, included in other payables of approximately
RMB28,891,000 (2022: RMB19,173,000) represented payables for construction
on leasehold improvement.

As at 31 December 2023, included in other payables of approximately
RMB3,062,000 (2022: RMB4,949,000) represented retention monies held by the
Group regarding construction on leasehold improvement, which are payable by
the end of maintenance period.

As at 31 December 2023, included in other payables of approximately
RMB720,000 (2022: RMB846,000) represented other PRC tax payables, other
than PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying amounts of the Group’s
deposits received, other payables and accruals are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair values.

R-E-_=F+-_A=+—08 " st AEMEMK
BHANRM28,891,0000(ZT=—F : AR¥E
19,173,0007T) e B E W ¥ RS 2 BT 5408 -

RZBZ=F+ZA=+—8 st AHMER
FIAK ARKES,062,000L(ZE=—F : AR
4,949,00070) AR EMEF A B EMERERE
ETROREE - ARREHERATA

R-B-=F+-"A=+—8 st AEMER
REHARET720,000(ZT-—F : AR¥
846,0007T ) 35 FR A B 1 EE FTS R LASN 2 H At FE 1<
BRI o

ARG AEN - Bt AEEZEWIZS -
HA R R E ERREERE AL ATE
ZRBHY -

EEEEERARAT —E-=FER 157
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158

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 26.
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

BORROWINGS 27.

BN —REENRE
BRAFASELAR  RERRERE
E o

CL

2023 2022
—g== —E——

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T

Current — secured bank loan BNHA — B KRR 1T /TA 5,712 5,712
Non-current — secured bank loan JERNE—F TEEW?E B 145,752 151,464
151,464 157,176

As at 31 December 2023, total current and non-current secured
bank loan were scheduled to repay as follows:

R-B_=F+-_HA=+—8 B
NIERNHE A IRTT B R A@ IR 8
AR THIHIRER

2023 2022
e = o

—_ = = e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Within one year —FR 5,712 5,712
More than one year, but not exceeding fBA—F - ENEEME
two years 7,827 5,712
More than two years, but not exceeding HBAME - B NERRF
five years 26,007 24,891
More than five years HBiE 111,918 120,861
151,464 157,176

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has the total
banking facility of approximately RMB180,000,000 (2022:
RMB180,000,000) granted by a bank to a subsidiary of the
Company and has cumulatively drawn down of approximately
RMB170,000,000 (2022: RMB170,000,000). During the
year, the Group repaid principal amount of approximately
RMB5,712,000 (2022: RMB8,724,000).
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HEZ

27.

28.

T =HF+-A=1+—RHULFE

BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no undrawn banking
facility as the drawdown period has ended. The banking
facility is secured by certain portion of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to approximately RMB230,800,000 (2022:
RMB242,700,000) (Note 15), trade receivables of approximately
RMB210,000 (2022: RMB28,000) (Note 20) and restricted bank
deposits of RMB2,000,000 (2022: RMB2,000,000) (Note 21)
as at 31 December 2023 and guaranteed by BJH Group (2022:
BJH Group), the related company of the Group.

The bank loan is variable interest bearing which carried interest
based on the 5-year loan prime rate issued by the National
Inter-bank Funding Center plus 0.25% per annum. The effective
interest rate as at 31 December 2023 is 4.45% (2022: 4.59%).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had not
breached any of the covenants of the banking facility.

The bank loan is arranged at variable interest rate and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Further details of the
Group’s management of interest rate risk are set out in note
37(iv).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)/
liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax (assets) against
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial
reporting purposes:

27.

28.

BE (&)

RZEZ=F+=—A=+—H #HR
RPABEER  AEBTERIER
MRTHME NZE_=F+=A
=+—8  ZRTHEUNLREELH
®E W) % E % A R % 230,800,000 7T

(ZZE=——F : AR ¥ 242,700,000
TT)(FizE15) - EZRWBERHIAR
¥ 010,000L (—E-—F : AR

28,0007T) (Fi5E20) B IR HIER 1717 3K
AR#2,000,000t(ZET=—4F : A
R#2,000,0007T) (FfsE21) {EHK I -
YARAEEBER AR GEEEE(=T
ToF BEESE)RMER-

BITERNFE BZE - H2HET
HEEREFPLEGOAFHERR
BEFEMN0.25%FFERFE - B=
BE-=F+-A=+—08  BEHNX
B4.45%( =B = =4 : 459%) °

RZEBE_=ZFR_FT__F+_A
=—t—B8 AEEVEERETHE
OFEREIE2 0N

RITERRF BN XL EAKE
HERS RN KRR - AEREEEF
K@ O — B E A HIREST (V) ©

ESET R
NTRERHBREBN - HFE—FE
HEBONKLETEMSH (BE) BiR
EFSRAEREHEEK  BEEMRE
B(EE)/ BENDIT

2023 2022
—_=E_= —EFE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
(restated)
(&%)
Deferred tax assets EERIRE (87,223) (79,453
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRTAEE 90,768 87,653
3,545 8,200
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28.
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised by
the Group in the consolidated financial position and movements
thereon during the current and previous financial years are as

A SE LR ()
AEERAFERBEVREFEER
RE IR P HERNRESE(E
E)/BENEKRTA REZEHMT

160

follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of investment  Right-of-use Lease profits of
properties assets liabilities  subsidiaries Total
MELRZ
REMEER - ERREE HEEE  A2KEA At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 W-ZT-—%
+=-A=+-H 16,556 - - 3,545 20,101
Effect of adoption RipEB AR
of amendments to F125UERTH
HKAS 12 (Note 4(a)) /2 (Fiz4(a) - 88,269 (92,294) = (4,025)
At 1 January 2022 i S—
(restated) —A—H(&3) 16,556 88,269 (92,294) 3,545 16,076
(Credited)/charged REE (%),
to the profit or loss kR (E51)
(restated) (Note 10) (FEE10) (3,900) (16,817) 12,841 = (7,876)
At 31 December 2022 RZF==
and 1 January 2023 +-A=+—H
(restated) R-T-=F
—B—R(&%)) 12,656 71,452 (79,453) 3,545 8,200
(Credited)/charged RBE(EE),/
to the profit or loss ez (Fif3E10)
(Note 10) (3,150) 6,265 (7,770) - (4,655)
At 31 December 2023 HZTZ=4F
+-—A=+—H 9,506 77,7117 (87,223) 3,545 3,545
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HE

28.

—E-=FE+-_A=+—RALEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC issued on 6 December 2007, a 10% withholding income
tax shall be levied on the dividends remitted by the companies
established in the PRC to their foreign investors starting from
1 January 2008. Dividends declared or proposed out from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008
shall be subject to this withholding income tax.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
nil (2022: approximately RMB47,000,000), as the Directors
consider that timing of reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of deductible
temporary differences for which deferred tax assets have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB36,377,000 (2022:
Nil), as the Directors consider that sufficient profit stream in the
foreseeable future is not probable.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB355,599,000 (2022: RMB301,005,000)
which were available for offset against future profits and are
subject to expiry period of five years. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses
because sufficient profit streams in the foreseeable future are
not probable.

28.

IEERTE ()
RER-_ZZTLF+ - ANBHEMD
FEMERMERAERESN - A=
TEN\F-A—HE  SHERBEK
MR R R EEIMEE FIR A AR
BBI0%NTBHIPABEH - R=TFT/\
F-A—R®&  UPBERFEELE
MEIR S ZE RIS ABAZIA
TBHAEM o

RZZBE-_=F+-_A=+—8 " @R
BB A RIRI% & B B M M R L RE R
FREREEBENEREEBEEFTH
RE(ZZ=Z=F : AR¥47,000,000
JC)  BARE SRR A AP S5 = A5
TREEMNNE mMBEABEEER
AR AI TR ARREEE -

NR-B-=F+=-A=+—08 ' K&
RELEFEHEEMN T ENEREZE
HaEaL) 5 AR 36,377,000 (=ZF
TTF E) IE%%?%#T%E
R AR 2R A] B SR $AH9 ) 7 2RO

RIEFRTEE ER BT E Rz 1] a2
8 18 JE SR B R I 30 R ot A5 s R IR
EEFUER R_TE-_=F+_F#
=+t—B AEBEEHHFRSBH
TEE B4 AR 355,599,000 ( =
— % AR¥301,005,000)7T) * A
AU RERER - WIZBRLT A E
FEHREE WMEREHBEEER
BBGFTHIARBEmMERR - BER
T8 R R RIS AT B2 8 B 5919 F1) 2R
IR o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. MK
2023 2022
—E-= B F
Number of Number of
shares shares
(000)  RMB’000 (000)  RMB'000
B BEE
(FR) AR%Trx (FRE) ARETT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of Hong Kong BIEEC.O1ET
Dollars (“HK$”) 0.01 each (DB B mik
At 1 January and 31 December ~ B—A—HBRX
+=—RA=+—H 10,000,000 97,099 10,000,000 97,099
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B EI{EO0.017% T
(DB % mik
At 1 January and 31 December ~ R—A—HBR
+=-—A=+—H 1,037,500 10,125 1,037,500 10,125
30. RESERVES 30. f##E
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are AEBRFRAZHBEHE NG E
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. mEFRET -
The movements of the Company’s reserves for the year are set RARRFER 2 EEEBFINAT
out below:

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total

B RE BB RtEE #st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBRTT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2022 R-EBE-—-F
—A—H 252,478 67,848 (96,284) 224,042
Loss and total comprehensive FHEELREENE
income for the year ok - - (132,908) (132,908)
At 31 December 2022 and iy
1 January 2023 =t+—-B8Kk=%
—=%—HF—H 252,478 67,848 (229,192) 91,134
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEREZENE
income for the year Rk - - (82,675) (82,675)
At 31 December 2023 R-T-=F
+=—RA=+—H 252,478 67,848 (311,867) 8,459
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30.

—E-=FE+-_A=+—RALEE

RESERVES (Continued)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

According to the relevant PRC laws, subsidiaries established in
the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulation,
to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital. The transfer of this reserve must
be made before the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than upon the liquidation of the entity.

According to the relevant PRC laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage, as
approved by the directors of the subsidiaries, of its net profit
after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulation,
to a statutory welfare reserve. This reserve can only be used
to provide staff facilities and other collective benefits to its
employees. The statutory welfare reserve is non-distributable
other than upon the liquidation of the entity. According to the
relevant PRC laws, from 1 January 2006, no subsequent profit
distribution to the statutory welfare reserve was needed.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represented the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued under the reorganisation and the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital/registered capital and share premium
of the subsidiaries then acquired.

The property revaluation reserve represented the revaluation
gain in respect of the leasehold land and buildings which were
reclassified as investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Translation reserve represents the exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into presentation currency of the Company.

30.

it ()

REREFERANE - RIDEERA
DIRTARBIIR - HEARR BN EEE
BEKMNREE HRARFERENA
FERGBRETIHEENES -

@Wﬁﬁ¢.%&'#¢l&jmw

AIZARER P B S5 R PIEE
ﬁm&@ﬂ % 2 10% 8 i £ 0K €
- BERAERHEAEHEIEREM
BRINE0% AL » M REFHE LA
A ff /B A Bl R s 1 B AR B R B AT R
oo BRIEERBR  TRADEERED

BHIK o

BRBEATRBDERE  EHREKZHRD
RIZASE IR & 5T AR 01 E eV R
BAFEMBATNESIENE T
AOLERTETRINES - ZES
BRI ARAEESERT‘EE TRERE
fthEEBHE - BRIEFTEER - FAPE
ERAMESPEDIR - RIBBBEFE
EECBZEERNF-A—HBE B
BEBADIKEETERMNESH R

R-ZEZLFOA=THEXKNEA
ERAEEHRAHEE - AR
EREBEEAMBTARRBRNNEE
B B PIT A BB P B X RIS, SR &
AR fnia B EARENERR o

%%i%ﬁ%ﬁh shAEE £ 3t A8 (B
—OFE+-A=t—HLEFE
i#ﬁ"*ﬁﬁhﬁwi)m%ﬁ

/\o

BERBERERIINEEMBHRRS
ARRIZINEHEENEN Z5 -
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30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. RAEE)
Contributed surplus AR
The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of ARBEABRBER_ZZFMH
the reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represents ZTHREMEAMESL AR F
the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s shares ARBREFMABITROMEEELE
issued in exchange for the consolidated net assets value of the FFTIEER B ARG EEFERN
subsidiaries then acquired. ¥ o

31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 31. EEHFMESHNEEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@ Directors’ emolument (@ =E=Ms
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as ENRENES M0 -
follows:

Salaries,

allowance
and other Contributions
benefits to retirement
in kind schemes

E
HRER HA RINGTE
ik BMAG #X st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETR AR®TR ARET:R

2023 —E-=F
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun Fifeshde & - - - -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong Caiih: ke 600 92 - 692
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong NS 720 203 76 999
1,320 295 76 1,691
Non-executive director FHTES
Madam Yan Xiao Min BRI
(Note (i) (BI3EG) 101 - - 101
Independent BIUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRI 154 - - 154
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BREEELE 151 - - 151
Mr. Ai Ji X RkEE 151 - - 151
Madam Ying Chi Kwan MEELL
(Note (ii)) (B X)) 2 - - 2
458 - - 458
1,879 295 76 2,250
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31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 31. EEHFMESREEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (48)
(@ Directors’ emolument (Continued) (@ E=mE(E)

Salaries,
allowance
and other  Contributions
benefits  to retirement
Fees in kind schemes

CE
AR R ELA RN
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTET ARETT ARETRT

2022 —E-CF

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun HhREsh e & - - = =

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong L iihs it 600 92 - 692

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong WS 720 203 75 998
1,320 295 75 1,690

Independent BIYFHTES

non-executive directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIREETAE 155 - - 155

Mr. Sun Ju Yi RERELE 151 - - 151

Mr. Aj Ji N kxeHk 151 - - 151

457 - - 457

1,777 295 75 2,147

Notes: PfE -

0) Madam Yan Xiao Min was appointed as a non-executive 0) BINRLALTEZERERFFE
director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2023. WITES AT =_=F+—

A—RBER -

(ii) Madam Ying Chi Kwan was appointed as an independent (iii) MEEZLEZEAARAE
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 27 NIEHITEE BT ==F
December 2023. TZAZEREBER

None of the Directors waived any emoluments paid by FRAMEEEMEAEBR M

the Group during the year (2022: Nil). (2T =—F : &) -

No emoluments were paid to the Directors as an FNE B EE S E (A BN

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as & ERBENARERIRN

compensation for loss of office for the year (2022: Nil). AR RS BERAEE( T

ZTFE) e
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31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 31.
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

166

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two (2022: two) directors for the year, whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 31(a). Details of the
remuneration paid to the remaining three (2022: three)
non-director highest paid individuals who were also
members of senior management of the Group, which
two of them fell within the band of Nil — HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately Nil — RMB917,000) and
one of them fell within the band of HK$1,000,001
to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB917,001 — RMB1,376,000) are as follows:

e o R REYRE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in

(b)

TEBREFMAL
FALXEBARESFHHA
TEREMAE(ZEZF : W
BIEE  FENBSE R
A31@EE - I FHRT =4
B CF  ZR)Ra5M
IFEZAT(NAEAEESR
BEIEAB) + B MALA N
= 7t 21,000,000 7T
(HERNDARBZTEARKE
917,0007T) & — 7 K & B F
1,000,001 /& 7T & 1,500,000 7
TT(FEE R AREQS17,0017T
= AR%1,376,0007T ) 15 a0
T

2023

—E2-=

2022
e —

=

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®TR

kind 2,627 2,828
Contributions to retirement schemes  RREHEI 5k 169 93
2,796 2,921

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the FRNAEETES S TE

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office for the year (2022: Nil).
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31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 31. EEFMEEREBRAE#HS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
()  Senior management’s emoluments (c)
The emoluments paid or payable to seven (note)
(2022: seven) members of senior management whose
emoluments fell within the following bands:

SREEAENE
ENRENER(HE)(ZF
“oF - ER)RREREKE
ZHENFIATHER -

2023

—E2-=

2022
e

—

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®BTR

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to £ 21,000,000/ T (HHER

approximately Nil - RMB917,000) WARBETEARKE
917,0007T) 6 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately BIL(EEROARE
RMB917,001 — RMB1,376,000) 917,001 L E AREE
1,376,0007T.) 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7c 22,000,000
(equivalent to approximately BL(HEROARE
RMB1,376,001 — RMB1,834,000) 1,376,001 L2 AR
1,834,007T) - 1

Note:

Two members of senior management, Mr. Du Jun Yin and Mr. Shi Wei,
resigned on 31 December 2023 and 26 June 2023 respectively.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following outstanding capital commitments:

Contracted, but not provided for, in respect

of property, plant and equipment

Ff%E

WG BB EEM B ENAREED
AR=—FT=_=F+=-A=+—RAK=F
—=FANAZHANERHE -

32. BEXREE

BREYME - BEMRED
FIRE R

REBEBAT RN EARERE

2023

—g—=

2022
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
AR®TR

8,915 2,412
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEEBALIXRS
In addition to those transactions and balances detailed BMRZELGEMEHREREMIBO T
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the IR G MEEGHIN AT R A LT
following transactions were carried out with related parties: EITZRS :
(@ Transactions with BJH Group (@ HEFEEEzZRS

2023 2022
—g== —E——

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Rental income in respect of BEREWED
investment properties HEWA 0] 2,303 2,229
Notes: B &L -
0] The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms of (0] ZE B IREARE G E G
the underlying agreements. EE °
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered (ii) BE-T-_=F+-A=+—
into a supplementary lease agreement for the reduction of lease BILFE - AEEEFEES
payment of a leasing premise with BJH Group for 2 years. The BT RARMFENRIHE
Group has recognised the effect of modification of right-of-use EYMERSHNBARERZ -
assets and lease liabilities of approximately RMB4,867,000. AEECHERFEREERENME
EABBERNTENARE
4,867,0007T °
(b)  Transactions with JH Real Estate (b) EEEEREMENRS

2023 2022
—g-= —E-—f

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T

Rental income in respect of BHELEMED

investment properties HEWA 0] 767 730
Licensing income in respect of BB R A

computer software i) 24 94
Addition of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE (i) 75,474 =
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T _=Ft+-_A=t—HILFE

HEZ

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Transactions with JH Real Estate (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreements.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into a new lease agreement for the use of a leasing premise
with JH Real Estate for 15 years. The Group has recognised
an addition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately RMB75,474,000.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into a supplementary lease agreement for the extension of the
existing lease term of a leasing premise with JH Real Estate for
3 years. The Group has recognised the effect of modification
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
RMB1,882,000.

Transactions with Shenzhen Baijiahua Yunzhuo
Hotel Management Limited

33.

Bﬁﬂﬁki?&% (&)
(b) EBEEFEEEHEMNRS(E)
Bt

(iii)

E 372

/\/7I<

%S S EDREEBERO G
REE -

HE_T-_=F+-A=+—
BIEFE  AEEREFEEREH
ERREMENFERT AR
15FRFAER® - A%EE
HREAEEERERHAEA
BEHARHT75,474,0007T °

BE-ZT-_=F+=-A=+—
AILEE  AEEREERM
EFTvmafAEhE - $8
EFREMRAHERRIERS
F o AEBCHRAEAREE
RAEEEEMNTENAR
#1,882,0007T °

YhEEEEZBEE

BARQANRS

2023 2022
—E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Licensing income in respect of BRI A
computer software (ii) - 69

Notes: &t

0] Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of [0} HEREmEAREER LT (F
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen Bﬁtﬁﬁiﬁ’jﬂﬁﬁ)ﬁ/\}%ﬁllﬁﬁ
Baijiahua Yunzhuo Hotel Management Limited. FEEZHEEEFRA

BERE
(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms of (i Z e R IRB IR 5 R A R

the underlying agreements.

EERRREERA

BE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BAB¢A L5 (&)

(d) Transactions with Shenzhen Jiahua Property (d) EBERIITEEVERBEER
Services Limited EEAENRS

2023 2022
—g== —E——

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Licensing income in respect of BB ARSI

computer software (i) - 69
Expenses in respect of property B EYEEIEH
management 5 (ii) (290) (290)
Short term lease expense in BRIEEL ARG
respect of car parking lot HEMY (ii) (2,621) (1,874)
Notes: &t -
0] Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of [0) e A RBERB AL (H
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen R 38 5 HE O BE A48 ) RO I
Jiahua Property Services Limited. EYERBEREENAHES
Bakn o
(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms of (ii) % R TR IR AR R 15 5 MO 16K
the underlying agreements. EE °
(e) Compensation of key management personnel () EEEEBAEME

2023 2022
e = =

—_=—= —_—

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Total remuneration of directors B E(MEE31()) R EAM
(Note 31(a)) and other members of FEEEAERNF N
key management

— Short-term employee benefits — R E BT 6,209 6,232
— Contributions to retirement schemes — iRREH 21 496 427
6,705 6,659
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AR RBMEMRRAE
COMPANY

2023 2022
—g== —=— -

[ =

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FieE AR®T R ARBTT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current asset ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries REB AR E - 31,959

Current assets REEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries N VNG R 36,743 67,646

Deposit paid and other receivables 2 11& & N E At fE k1A 241 57

Cash and cash equivalents Be RIS EEY 3,259 3,630
40,243 71,333

Current liabilities REBAE

Amount due to a subsidiary ANPGRS 19,590 =

Other payables and accruals H IR ERTE R 2,069 2,033
21,659 2,033

Net current assets REEEFE 18,584 69,300

Net assets EEFE 18,584 101,259

EQUITY ER

Share capital N 29 10,125 10,125

Reserves {1 30 8,459 91,134

Total equity FERAAEE 18,584 101,259

Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
HERE 3 PRt s
Director Director
EE EH
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35. RAHERFNER
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 RZBE_=ZFR_FT-_—_F+=A
are as follows: =+—H  WBARFBERT :
Particulars of
issued share/
Place of incorporation/ paid-up Percentage of interest held by the Company
establishment and legal form registered AAAGEREE L Principal activities and
Company name of entity capital 2023 2022 place of operations
BRITRG,/ S a3
HMRYL/ RIS R BHREMER Directly Indirectly Directy Indiecty FEEER
NRER HEAER ZH#E  HE g BE G -
Forever Prosperity International British Virgin Islands, limited liability USs$20  100% - 100% - Investment holding in
Company Limited company Hong Kong
KREBERAA ABRNES FRELRA 0% REBETRERR
Ding Xin Investment Company Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$0.1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited Hong Kong
SHREERLA A AREMALA 0% REBETRERR
Shenzhen Baifiahua Commercial The PRC, limited liability company RMB45,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
Management Limited of shopping malls in the
PRC
ATEEERZERERAA mEl - EREERA ARE RAEE REREYRL
45,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua The PRC, limited liability company RMB50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Commercial factoring services
Commercial Factoring Limited in the PRC
ATASEEERERBERAR BB ERELRA ARE R ERERZRZRSE
50,000,0007T
Shenzhen Baijiahua Department The PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB220,400,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
Stores Company Limited (wholly-foreign owned enterprise) operation and management
of retail stores in the PRC
ATEEEREARAA HEl - EREERA ARE RAEETRESRRIEER
UIEEER%) 220,400,0007% ERTER
Guangxi Baijiahua Department Stores - The PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
Company Limited of retall stores in the PRC
ERAEEREARAA HEl - EREERA ARE REEEERERTER
10,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

35.

Company name

DERM

Shenzhen BJH Network Technology
Limited
AT REEBENRERAR

Shenzhen Baijiahua Convenient
Stores Chain Management Limited
ATREEEEENEERER

N

Shenzhen Baijiahua Supply Chain
Management Limited
AT AEERREEEERAT

Shenzhen Huahuicheng Supply
Chain Management Company
Limited (Note)

RTEEREEEEEER
R ()

Note:

Shenzhen Huahuicheng Supply Chain Management Company Limited was

incorporated on 28 April 2023.

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were audited
by BDO Limited, for statutory purpose and/or for the purpose of

the group consolidation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and legal form
of entity

MR/ RILEHR
HEAER

The PRC, limited liability company

HE - ARARAT

The PRC, limited liability company

HE - ARAAAT

The PRC, limited liability company

HE - ARAAEAT

The PRC, limited liability company

HE - ARAAEAT

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of
issued share/
paid-up
registered
capital
BRIRG/
BAREMER
Z#fE

RMB10,000,000

AR%
10,000,00070

RMBS5,000,000

AR%
5,000,0007C

RMBS,000,000

AR%
5,000,0007C

RMBS,000,000

AR%
5,000,0007C

35.

Percentage of interest held by the Company
RARGEERADL
2023 2022
- CF —E-oF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B BE EE HE

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - -
GEE

FOM B A R Ay i s (&)

Principal activities and
place of operations

IERRER
Behy

Operation and management
of online sale in the PRC
R EEERERS HHE

Inactive

i

Supply chain financing
services in the PRC

R BRI 2 RS

Sales of goods in the PRC

RBREER

RYTEEREERERBERARNR B _=F
PR =+/\BEEMAKL

LB AR BEHRECHTE)

PIRERSEBFEEREBEEL

ERREFMEBMARAAER

HE o
Az

EEREERERAQA]

T =FFIR

RER - BLENEQBBITERNER
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36.

174

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

MEEBEE 2B E AR

Borrowings Lease liabilities

BE HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR%T
(Note 27) (Note 14)
(MtzE27) (FHaE14)
At 1 January 2023 R-FB-=%—-A—H 157,176 417,648
Changes in cash flow: ReREEH :
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (5,712 -
Interest paid BFE (6,548) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease BEHEAEBEZ AT Y
liabilities - (46,614)
Repayment of interest portion of lease BEHEAEZMETD
liabilities - (40,311)
Total changes from financing cash flows BMERSNEEBEE - (12,260) (86,925)
Other changes: Hib &g :
Interest on borrowings BEFME 6,548 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE - 40,311
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into  :] A EEHHEBE
new leases 0 - 124,982
Effect of lease modifications MEEITnTE - (14,996)
Total other changes HE b EhBat 6,548 150,297
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=F
+=-—BA=+—H 151,464 481,020
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36.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

36.

METBHELE2EEZAE

(%)

Borrowings  Lease liabilities
BE HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARETT
(Note 27) (Note 14)
(Kt=F27) (KizE14)
At 1 January 2022 RZE=-=—F—A—H 93,413 473,476
Changes in cash flow: Renedsg):
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSHRIA 72,487 =
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (8,724) -
Interest paid BFE (6,209) =
Repayment of principal portion of lease ERHEaEsAEIHD
liabilities - (45,938)
Repayment of interest portion of lease ERHEEaEFED
liabilities - (83,229)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRNEFEAE - 57,554 (79,167)
Other changes: E it g -
Interest on borrowings BEFME 6,209 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE - 33,229
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into  :] A EEHHEBE
new leases 0 = 4,277
Effect of lease modifications HEEITNTE - (3,327)
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19{8ETH S 1B H - (10,840)
Total other changes HithFEhaast 6,209 23,339
At 31 December 2022 R-T -
+=—A=+—8 157,176 417,648
EEFEERAERAR —T-=—FF® 175



N
I
I
I
4

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BT ERRMIE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described
below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=1+—RHILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position relate to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

(i)

BEERBEERQFENE

(%)
(i)

TREERBEER
RiZEMBRRNKREINEEE
BMEELRSBREERZRE

BT :

2023
—®—=

RMB’000
AR®T R

2022
e —

=

RMB’000
ARBTT

Financial assets: SWMEE -
Financial assets measured at HEBEKAFTEZ
amortised costs SREE
— Trade and loan receivables — BB SRR RER 30,514 53,267
— Deposits paid and other receivables — B2 &4 M H b e U R
15 25,930 22,618
— Restricted bank deposit — R HIIRITIF X 2,000 2,000
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRREEEY 40,002 66,171
98,446 144,056
Financial liabilities: S@Aas:
Financial liabilities measured at HEBENAFTEZ
amortised costs SRAaE
— Trade payables —EE SRR 46,570 54,029
- Deposits received, other payables ~ —2UWiE4 - HibERZR
and accruals H R FEFTE 118,541 90,896
- Amount due to a director — B —REEFIE 59 59
- Borrowings — &g 151,464 157,176
316,634 302,160
Lease liabilities HEAE 481,020 417,648
797,654 719,808
EEFEERERAR —T_=FFIR 177
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

178

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group has operations in the PRC so that the
majority of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash
flows are denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of
the Group are mostly denominated in RMB and HKS$.
Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of foreign
currencies against RMB may have financial impact to
the Group.

The Group’s exposures at the reporting date to currency
risk arising from foreign currency denominated monetary
assets in currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate are set out below:

37. BXEREERAFEFE

(I
i

i

i)

=
=]

)

SNES B
EEERESHIAY ATE
RERBEHEAREREH
TR 2 L -

AEBMRPBREERS - A
SEABAWA - A EBRE
MEBHAARKETE  MAE
BABHEERBBEHOUAR
BABTTAHE - INEHARKE
PE R e (A B RIR B A B 3 AN
SEEKRATBRE

BN ASNEEHER B EE N
HEEHERNNEEE TRN
B¥HE  BAKERHER
HIERE T oGS -

2023 2022
—_E_= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Financial assets: SHMEE -
Cash and bank balances — HK$ Re RIRITESB BT 3,554 3,663
Deposits and other receivables — HK$ 324 K E4th e U F0E —
BT 102 100
3,656 3,763
Financial liabilities: sRIEE:
Other payables and accruals — HK$ ~ EAh e R0E K fE 5t
ER—ETT (1,247) (2,609
Net exposure [2\ B FRE 2,409 1,154
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened by
5% against HK$, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year and, accumulated losses
would have been approximately RMB115,000 higher
(2022: accumulated losses of RMB55,000 higher), as a
result of foreign exchange loss on translation of foreign
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The same % decrease in the foreign currency exchange
rate on RMB against HK$ would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s post-tax loss for the year and
accumulated losses as shown above but of opposite
effect, on the basis all variances held constant.

These are the same method and assumption used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

(iii)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts of cash
and bank balance, restricted bank deposit, trade and
loan receivables, deposits paid and other receivables.

UJ]U

\

MEAREERATENE

g LR (48)

BREDM

F_E:_¢+:ﬂ5+*
AR LB TTIHES%

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@“%?“'Jﬁ
N EEBE R RFTBEBHEBR
HINEHENSREERAR
SREME S BEmMEMOARE
115,000t (ZFE = —F : &5t
51838 hn A R #55,0007T) °

MABREERTE - AR
BRETEXRZERTHRED
HEAEBFEABRREERRR
SHEREAR XA ERE
BERRTAZEE -

FrfE AR xR RS AR RE
EZT=FR=ZFT==
T A=+t—RHLEFELKEH
T4 TR T E M BURE £ 4T BT iR
FRZ&AER -

AREB—BHLAAFFEER
INERERR MR WRAHA
B

+4J<
m,‘

QEH Eé@IEMX%ﬁ
FREZRBS BT AGKE
TEREE  SAKEHRUE
EiENER - AEEEHNR
AERRBRREREE MRITHE
A~ ZRBIRITER - BURE
SEREER  ENRERE
RN IR 2 BRE(E
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE—T-=4+-A=t+—AIL5E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the operation and management of retail stores
and other related businesses, the Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk. Most of the
sales transactions were settled in cash basis, by credit
card payment or through online payment platforms.
Credit terms are only offered to corporate customers
with whom the Group has an established and ongoing
relationship. Regarding trade receivables arising from
rental income, the Group maintains a defined credit
policy including stringent credit evaluation on and
payment of a rental deposit from tenants. Receivables
are regularly reviewed and closely monitored to minimise
any associated credit risk.

For provision of financing services, the loan receivables
are attributable to one customer, therefore, the Group
has significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to obtain loans
from the Group are subject to credit evaluation review.
The Group had a collateral arrangement with the debtor
to cover its risks associated with loan receivables. As at
31 December 2023, the management considered there
is no value for the collateral arrangement.

The Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid and
other receivables are actively monitored to avoid
significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group is
not exposed to any significant credit risk from any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having
similar characteristics. The Group’s bank deposits were
deposited with major financial institutions in Hong Kong
and the PRC, which management believes are of high-
credit-quality without significant credit risk.

Except for the rental income receivables which hold
rental deposits as collaterals, all other Group’s trade
receivables, deposits paid and other receivables have
no collateral. Details of the Group’s ECLs assessments
are as follows:

180 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

37. MBEAREERAFETE

(#&)
(iii)

&Rk GR)
REERERTEEREME
MEBMS @ AEENEER
BRI EHREBRAEPER - X
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SEEHARREESEY - A%
ENBREMERENAEE
ESERNEFPHEEREZER
EES c AEEHEBEFAR
RITHEMRLTHE LUREHE S
EWEFRBENERR - RZF
—=%F+-A=+—8 B®
BERBEITRTHESEEE -

I & = B BRI SR B O FE IR
BHEN - ENRE REME
WE - LR EERRBES
oo AEE N EEAA B
BOEAE X ZHFREM
RHGHFERIIERNEKRE
ERkE - AEEMRITRER
EREERTENEES R
B EEERERSHEAR
=mEEE  TEHREXE
&R o

BEWESWANER IR E
RER@IN - AEBEFRFEEM
FEWRSR « BT R E Al
Wk mE I m - NEEEM
EREEFEFBNT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e UEIRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_T_=F+_A=1+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. B REKREERAFEFTE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERREE)
(@  Trade receivables () J?EH&E%EE%T\

The Group applies the simplified approach in
providing for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS
9, which adopts the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables
collectively with a provision matrix. The Group
always measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
The ECLs on trade receivables are estimated
by reference to past default experience of the
debtor and current market condition in relation
to each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also
incorporates forward-looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions
that may affect the ability of the debtors to
settle receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
receivables have been grouped based on share
credit risk characteristics.

No provision for impairment loss for these trade
receivables (including rental income receivables)
were made at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as
the financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the ECLs of these financial assets
was immaterial.

RRE BB HRE R
FOWAARE - AEME
FE RO A IR IR HIE
EEE mERWE
ZERF A RESE
BRENBERRE - X
SE-—EERERZH
BEHEEEENSE]
EWE Z R EBE
B - BUIE BRI
BEHEEER2EES
ARBEERCSE R E
(EO YNGR iR
st - FHEEERE
AR BER B AT AR

AN IAN S
RERKBRERZEDN
AIEIEEH - BETETR
HEEER  BEES
R B IR IB KR AR
R A o

B BMERZEREKE
SFER(BREEKES
WA ) &R 1B 85 18 B
% BERERSBMEE
MEERBRREAZSE
CHEENTBHEES
BWTEK -

B B

5Id
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—RHILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. Bi¥EMEERAFETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (48)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERREE)
(b)  Deposits and other receivables (b) T’kﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬂﬁl%ﬂlﬁ

182

(©)

The Group determines ECLs for deposits and
other receivables based on 12-month ECLs
which take into account the historical default
experiences and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example, the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties. It is concluded that credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding deposits
paid and other receivables are insignificant.
The Group has assessed that the deposits paid
and other receivables do not have a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
risk of default is insignificant, therefore, the ECLs
for those deposits paid and other receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs
method. No loss allowance for the deposits paid
and other receivables were recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Loan receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure ECLs
which uses lifetime ECLs (2022: 12-month ECLs)
for loan receivables. The internal credit risk
ratings are based on qualitative (such as debtors’
operating conditions, financial positions, external
rating of customers, etc.) and quantitative
factors (mainly includes past due information
of the loan receivables). During the year,
management considers loan receivables become
credit-impaired due to the legal proceedings
as described in note 20(ii). Thus, the loan
receivables are classified in stage 3 (2022: stage
1).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RETEIRRME (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Loan receivables (Continued)

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
by referencing the external data adjusted by
macroeconomic factors and forward-looking
information.

The credit policies have been followed by the
Group throughout the year and are considered
to be effective.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of loan receivables during the year is as
follows:

37. WEEABREERQAFETE

(&)

(i) EERKEGE)

(©)

U ()
SHERBERERNE
EOBE  BOBRE
TR (B fi 3240 5 1B 0
1) R R R
B o PR OBEE KR
s 1B R SN B B
HAESE  WEELH
AR E R A AR
B -

EFERREE2FE—HA
AEEER - BRES
B

FR o ERERBRR
HERRMEEHIMT -

Loss
allowances

ERRE
RMB’000
ARBTT

As at 1 January 2022 R-—ZBE-—_—F—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised BRI ERE 881

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 A=-—ZE=-_—f+=-H=+—H

E=—Z2—_=%—H—H 881
Impairment loss recognised BHERRESE 36,377
Unwinding discount of impairment loss BE RSB RANER 796

At 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=%F+-_H=+—8H 38,054
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank balances, borrowings, loan receivables and
lease liabilities. The bank balances and borrowings are
at variable interest rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The loan receivables and
lease liabilities are at fixed interest rates which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other than
the concentration of interest rate risk related to the
movements in the 5-year loan prime rate issued by the
National Inter-bank Funding Centre, the Group has no
significant concentration of interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Management monitors the related interest exposure
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken is monitored
closely.

Management considers the Group’s exposure to fair
value interest rate risk is not significant due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

Management considers the Group’s exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk is not significant due to the deposit
rates in Hong Kong and the PRC and the loan prime rate
in the PRC are expected to remain stable by reference
to the historical data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for the
exposure to interest rates for bank balances as the
management of the Group considers that, taking into
account that the fluctuation in interest rates on bank
balances is minimal, the impact of the Group’s loss for
the year and accumulated losses is insignificant.

For borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
variable-rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2022: 25 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated
losses would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB571,000 (2022: RMB1,394,000).

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and
bank balances and have available funding to meet its
working capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is
dependent upon the cash received from its customers.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB152,578,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023, and as of 31 December 2023, the Group had
net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB138,916,000 and RMB13,168,000, respectively,
while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB40,002,000. These conditions
indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

PHEERBEERQFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have prepared a
cash flow forecast covering a period from the end of
the reporting period to June 2025. The Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and the Group’s available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The plans and measures summarised in note
2(b) to the consolidated financial statements have been
undertaken to mitigate the liquidity pressure to improve
the financial position of the Group.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be
required to pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in
instalments, each instalment is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Group is committed to pay.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. B EEREERAFETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (#&)
(v  Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) REMMEREBE(E)

Total  Repayable
contractual within1~ Over1year  Over2years
Carrying  undiscounted yearoron butlessthan  butless than More than
amount  cash flows demand 2years 5 years 5 years

aRARE  -Ead -ENE WENML
REE ReRBAE ZFREXRE  LONWE  BIREE EENML
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWMBOOO  RMBOOO

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR A . ARETR
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=E+A=t-H
Trade payables ERESER 46,570 46,570 46,570 - - -
Depostts received, other Elie - KHERTER
payables and accruals fErBR 118,541 118,541 118,541 - - -
Amount due to a director Efi—2EE3 59 5 5 - - -
Lease liabilties HEaR 481,020 734,672 94,401 104,807 239,356 296,108
Borrowings &5 151,464 202,837 12,468 14,282 43,007 132,990
Total 1 797,654 1,102,679 272,039 119,089 282,453 429,098
At 31 December 2022 R-E--E+-A=1-A
Trade payables EREZERN 54,029 54,029 54,029 - = =
Depostts received, other EliEe - AHENTER
payables and accruals [EitER 90,89 90,89 90,89 - = =
Amount due to a director Ef-28258 59 59 59 - = =
Lease liabilties HERR 417,648 537,040 89,790 91486 282,079 123,685
Borrowings &5 157,176 217,343 12,923 12,676 37,39 154,354
Total &t 719,808 899,367 247,697 104,162 269,469 278,039
The Group considers expected cash flows from financial RNEB R R EE RSB R
assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in MEBEEEZESRMEE 2 TBHR
particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets ehe LEZHBES2ERR
that readily generate cash. The Group’s existing cash Har I EAR S REE
resources and other liquid assets significantly exceed E AEEREHREERELE
the cash outflow requirements. MRS EENBEBERSRE

Fk e
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 38.
The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide

an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings and lease liabilities” as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position) less total cash
(including “cash and cash equivalents” and “restricted bank
deposit” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position). Capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The debt-to-equity
ratio at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

BEXEHE
AEBMEXREE B ERERAKREE
BRREEBNEEN  URRREY &R
B EE BT A BB F LA R BR IR
RAER

AREBESTE R L EREREANE
B URRERREEREE MR
B YEEAREARESTE
BRI EAAX MR REERE
we -

RERLFBELGERE  ARENE
FEN TRENRESHE - MR
RORA - HTHROIHEEEN
RETS °

AEENEAGBEERRERAEE
EBYARKABEE ANEHER (B
RAMBREMBENEHITRA
N RFTER) -

AEENEBERAL R BEEERE
© o RLENFEBHRUAESTER
o FEBUEERE(BIEERETH
MARFIR BB RIERBERKEE
aE])RAESEAE(BERE MBI
KRR RS EED | R PRFIER
TEHDFAESE - ESUREHH
MARIRA R FTESE - BN
Eo=FRZE_F+ZRA=+—
AR B ERA R EIT ¢

2023 2022
—g== —Eo =

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Borrowings BE 151,464 157,176
Lease liabilities HEaE 481,020 417,648
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEEY (40,002) (66,171)
Restricted bank deposit SRR BRI TIF R (2,000) (2,000)
Net debt FERS 590,482 506,653
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BARER), T iesE (13,168) 131,409
Debt-to-equity ratio BERARLLE N/A 3.86 times

TiE A 3.86f%

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI EHRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

38.

39.

40.

—E-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital and will balance its overall capital
structure through the plans and measures as described in note
2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 March 2024, the Group has entered into a loan
agreement with a related company, BJH Group for an interest-
free and unsecured loan facility of RMB50,000,000 for the
period from 15 March 2024 to 31 December 2025. Pursuant to
the loan agreement, the Group is able to draw down the loan
anytime during the facility period and repay the outstanding
amount at the end of facility period. Subsequent to 31
December 2023, the Group has not drawn down such loan
facility.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were approved for issue by the Directors on
27 March 2024.

38.

39.

40.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
YE 3

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=
Attributable
interest of
Location Tenure the Group
1t 2 3 HE AEEELER
1/F, 2/F, 3/F and 4/F partial, Commercial premises for Medium term lease 100%
Jiahua Ming Yuan rental

No. 246 Xinhu Road

Baoan Central District

Shenzhen

The PRC

H [EEJustic! FRERTEAY
Zellin]

BLH LR

RS 24657

(EE=2=7)

118 - 21F - BB RAE(FH)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L FEMEEE

RESULTS ES |

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—T-NF —Z-FF —T--F T CF =t =
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETR
(restated)
(Z51)
Revenue WA 645,329 428,057 434,237 335,272 353,966
Cost of inventories sold BERERAK (354,233) (207,184) (236,566) (168,004) (139,169)
291,096 220,873 197,671 167,268 214,797
Other operating income Hipg g mA 65,703 73,167 47,199 51,832 35,213
Increase/(decrease) in fair value % &M A AL,/
of investment properties 2 800 (7,500) (10,400) (15,600) (12,600)
Seling and distrioution costs &R D KA (290,102) (250,254) (240,267) (231,177) (266,797)
Administrative expenses THAY (60,083) (50,226) (45,621) (40,127) (42,532)
Other operating expenses HipEemy (5,455) (131,606) (8,855) (2,266) (1,177)
(Impairment loss)/reversal EREZ(RERSE),/
of impairment on loan RERE
receivables = (2,076) 2,076 (881) (36,377)
Finance costs BIIERA (51,750) (45,905) (42,066) (39,438) (46,859)
Loss before income tax %Fﬁ SHAIER (49,771) (193,527) (100,263) (110,389) (156,332)
Income tax (expense)/credit % (%) /He (2,571) (934) 149 6,468 3,754
Loss for the year FABE (52,342) (194,461) (100,114) (103,921) (152,578)
Loss attributable to: MTALEMGES :
— Owners of the Company ~RAREBA (52,342) (194,461) (100,114) (103,921) (152,578)
Dividends i) - - - - -
Loss per share ShER
- Basic —&R RMBAR® RMBAR® RVMBAR® RMBAR®  RMBAR¥
(5.05)cents??  (18.74)cents  (9.65) cents7y  (10.02) cents?  (14.71) cents 7
- Diluted %% RMBAR®  RMBAR®  RVBAR®  RMBAR®  RMBARM
(5.05) cents?y  (18.74) cents?  (9.65) cents  (10.02) cents73  (14.71) cents
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Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)

FEHEBE ()
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=R=1+-H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NEF —E-EEF —E-—F —E-—F —E_=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT
(restated)
(E51)
Total assets BERE 1,505,579 1,192,134 1,025,351 975,879 897,375
Total liabilities BafE (971,698) (852,714) (786,045) (836,469) (910,543)
Net assets/(liabiltties) BE/(BR)FE 533,881 339,420 239,306 139,410 (13,168)
Note: fI5E -

The results for year ended 31 December 2023, and the assets and liabilities as at 31 BET-_=F1+-A=1T—HIFENEE ' UER=
December 2023 have been extracted from the audited consolidated statement of ZT-_=F+—-A=+—ANEENIBED IFEFETER
comprehensive income and audited consolidated statement of financial position as set out ~— FEB758 RHE76E77 A MK EZLR A 2 E ST ML EZ
on page 75 and pages 76 to 77 respectively, of the financial statements. RE MR o
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